
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
AGENDA 

   JUNE 17, 2013 



Table of Contents

Agenda 2
Consideration and Action:

07-08 Case Analysis 4
Public Hearing and Action:

13-05 Case Analysis 8
Appointments to Library Board of Trustees

Library Board Appointment Form 13
Appointments to Game Commission

Game Commission Appointment Form 14
Game Commission Applications 15

Budget Amendments
Budget Amendments 19

Approval of June 3, 2013 Minutes
June 3 Minutes 22

Approval of Airport Rules and Regulations
Airport Rules & Regulations 70

Approval of Mutual Aid Agreement with City of Chesapeake Fire
Department

115Mutual Aid Agreement-City of Chesapeake Fire Dept 
Resolution to declare items surplus from various departments

Surplus Resolution 118
Project Ordinance for Replacement of the Ocean Sands
Wastewater Treatment Plant - Phase I

Ocean Sands WWTP 120

1



Document last changed: 6/12/2013 10:57 AM 

 

Currituck County 
Board of Commissioners Agenda  

Historic Currituck County Courthouse 

 
 Date: Monday, June 17, 2013 Time: 7:00 PM 

 
  

Work Sessions 
 
5:30 PM Building Inspections  
6:30 PM Amendment to Beach Driving Ordinance  
 
7:00 pm Call to Order 
 

A) Invocation – Rev. Glenn McCranie, Navy Chaplain, Retired 
B) Pledge of Allegiance 
C) Approval of Agenda 
D) Public Comment 

Please limit comments to items not appearing on the regular agenda; 
please limit comments to 3 minutes. 

 
Public Hearings 
 

A) Consideration and Action: PB 07-08 Dennis Anderson Muddy 
Motorsports Park:  Request for renewal of a use permit for a privately 
owned outdoor recreation facility located at 5243 Caratoke Highway, Tax 
Map 83, Parcel 6A, Poplar Branch Township. 
 

B) Public Hearing and Action: PB 13-05 Pat’s Way:  Request zoning an 
abandoned Right-of-Way (Pat's Way) to General Business (GB), located 
in Barco, Tax Map 60, Parcel 55D, Crawford Township. 

New Business 

 
A) Board Appointments: 

1. Appointments to Library Board of Trustees 
2. Appointments to Game Commission 

2



Document last changed: 6/12/2013 10:57 AM 

 
3. Appointment of a Commissioner to the Albemarle Rural 

Transportation Planning Organization (RPO) 
B) Consent Agenda: 

1. Budget Amendments 
2. Approval of June 3, 2013 Minutes 
3. Approval of Airport Rules and Regulations 
4. Approval of Mutual Aid Agreement with City of Chesapeake Fire 

Department 
5. Resolution to declare items surplus from various departments 
6. Project Ordinance for Replacement of the Ocean Sands 

Wastewater Treatment Plant - Phase I 
C) Commissioner’s Report 
D) County Manager’s Report 

Adjourn 

3



COUNTY OF CURRITUCK 
Planning and Community Development Department 

Planning and Zoning Division 
153 Courthouse Road, Suite 110 
Currituck, North Carolina 27929 

Telephone (252) 232-3055 / Fax (252) 232-3026 

MEMORANDUM 

TO:  Board of Commissioners 

FROM:  Planning Staff 

DATE:  June 7, 2013 

SUBJECT: PB 07-08 Dennis Anderson Muddy Motorsports Park 
Special Use Permit Renewal 

History of Request 
March 13, 2007 Planning Board Recommended Approval of SUP for  Privately 

Owned Outdoor Recreation Facility 
May 7, 2007 Board of Commissioners Approved SUP for Privately Owned 

Outdoor Recreation Facility for One Year. 
June 18, 2007 Board of Commissioners Approved SUP for Privately Owned 

Recreation Facility for Three Years. 
June 21, 2010 Board of Commissioners Approved Renewal of SUP for Three 

Years.  

Narrative 
This SUP (See Attachment) is due to expire on June 21, 2013.  The applicant is requesting 
a renewal of the permit that would not expire.  Issues that must be addressed are as 
follows: 

Comments from Planning Staff 
1. A special event permit (Formerly called a mass gathering permit) is required for

each separate event.  The applicant may apply annually for all of the known 
events for that year. 

Comments from Sheriff Johnson 
1. The issue of law enforcement to the number of people in attendance is becoming a

large issue. With the increase in attendance, crowd control is very difficult with just 

PB 07-08 Dennis Anderson Muddy Motorsports Park 
6/21/13 SUP Renewal 

Page 1 

4



the two law enforcement officers currently required. I would like to request an 
increase to a minimum of four.  

 
Comments from Spence Castello, Chief Building Inspector 

1. There is a structure made from moving pallets on the site. I was told this was used 
for selling beer. This would have to be removed and no more structures are 
allowed without permits. 

 
Comments from James Mims, Fire Marshal 

1. These 2010 TRC Comments have still not been addressed: 
a. Need Public Safety Plan That conforms to the following 403 1 2 Contents 

The public safety plan shall address such items as emergency vehicle 
ingress and egress fire protection emergency medical services public 
assembly areas and the directing of both attendees and vehicles including 
the parking of vehicles vendor and food concession distribution and the 
need for the presence of law enforcement and fire and emergency 
medical services personnel 

b. Need better clarification in regards to use and expected number of 
customers 

c. Need formal agreements with Sheriff EMS Chief and Local Volunteer Fire 
Chief 

d. Reminder that tents require permits  
e. Fireworks require special permits 

 
Comments from David Sweeney, Albemarle Regional Health Services 
My office (the Health Dept.) has had NO issues with Dennis Anderson Muddy Motor Sports 
Park (DAMMPARK) in the past.   In the past several years DAMMPARK has always 
provided Port-o-Johns and we have worked with the vendors in obtaining food service 
permits, as necessary.  However I wanted to include the 2 comments below so that there is 
no discrepancy for future events. 
 

1) Since DAMMPARK  does not have a Septic system installed with public restroom 
facilities, then an adequate number of  Port-O-Johns MUST be supplied at any 
and all events to serve the total number of people in attendance. 

2) Since DAMMPARK does not have a Food Service Permit that any and all vendors 
that provide food to any event on this property will be required to be approved 
by the Local Health Dept.  Vendors that already have approved permits and 
catering capabilities may only need to notify the health department ahead of 
time.  Other vendors that do not already have an approved permit will need to 
apply at least 15 calendar days before any proposed event.  These vendors will 
be considered on an individual basis.  An event coordinators packet should be 
completed prior to the event to notify the Health Department of the specified 
vendors, this can be done at the beginning of each season for the entire season or 
before each event depending upon the change of vendors. 

 
 

 PB 07-08 Dennis Anderson Muddy Motorsports Park 
 6/21/13 SUP Renewal 
 Page 2 

5



ATTACHMENT – SUP 
 
SPECIAL USE PERMIT GRANTED 
 
On the date(s) listed below, the Board of Commissioners for the County of Currituck met 
and held a public hearing to consider the following application: 
 
Owner:  C.O. Partners of Jarvisburg, LLC 
   Jerry and Tommy Wright 
   PO Box 24 
   Jarvisburg, NC  27947 
 
Applicant:  Dennis Anderson 
   3650 Caratoke Highway 
   Poplar Branch, NC  27965 
 
Property Location: 5243 Caratoke Highway 

 
Project: PB 07-08 Dennis Anderson Muddy Motorsports Park  
 
Proposed Use: Privately Owned Outdoor Recreation Facility  
 
Meeting Dates: June 21, 2010 – Board of Commissioners’ Public Hearing/Action  
 
Having heard all the evidence and argument presented at the hearing, the Board finds 
that the application is complete, that the application complies with all of the applicable 
requirements of the Currituck County Unified Development Ordinance for the development 
proposed, and that therefore the application to make use of the above described 
property for the purpose indicated is hereby approved subject to all applicable 
provisions of the Unified Development Ordinance and the following conditions: 
 

(A) The applicant shall complete the development strictly in accordance with 
the plans submitted to and approved by the Board of Commissioners, a 
copy of which is filed in the office of the Planning Department. 

 
(B) If any of the conditions affixed hereto or any part thereof shall be held 

invalid or void, then this permit shall be void and of no effect. 
 

(C)   This permit is valid for three (3) years and will expire on June 21, 2013, 
after which it must be renewed by the Currituck County Board of 
Commissioners. 

 PB 07-08 Dennis Anderson Muddy Motorsports Park 
 6/21/13 SUP Renewal 
 Page 3 

6



 
(D) Other conditions:   
 

1. A Mass Gathering   Special Event permit is required for each event. 
2. Tents require permits. 
3. Fireworks require special permits. 
4. Structures shall not be located where fire apparatus have no improved 

area to access them. 
5. Structures must be within 400’ from a fire hydrant. 
6. Overnight camping is allowed on premise. 
7. All events must comply with county regulations effective at the time of 

the event. 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the County has caused this permit to be issued in its name, and 
the property owners/applicants of the property above described, do hereby accept this 
Special Use Permit together with all its conditions, as binding on them and their successors 
in interest. 
 
ATTEST: 
 
     (Seal)        
 Clerk to the Board    Chairman 
       Board of Commissioners 
    
 Date 
 
 

(NOT VALID UNTIL FULLY EXECUTED) 
 

 PB 07-08 Dennis Anderson Muddy Motorsports Park 
 6/21/13 SUP Renewal 
 Page 4 

7



 
COUNTY OF CURRITUCK 

Planning and Community Development Department 
Planning and Zoning Division 

153 Courthouse Road, Suite 110 
Currituck, North Carolina 27929 

Telephone (252) 232-3055 / Fax (252) 232-3026 
 
 
 

TO:  Board of Commissioners 
 
FROM:  Planning and Zoning Division 
 
DATE:  May 17, 2013 
 
SUBJECT: Pat’s Way Zoning 
 
 
In 2002, Kemnay Private Access Subdivision was approved creating Pat’s Way, a 45’ 
private right-of-way (See Attachment #1).  In February 2013, a recombination plat was 
recorded that abandoned the private right-of-way and that area became a part of Lot 4 
in Kemnay.  The new access for the subdivision is provided through an extension of Fyvie 
Drive (See Attachment #2).  The new section of Fyvie Drive must be improved prior to 
issuance of a building permit.   
 
Since a right-of-way is an unzoned area of land, the abandoned right-of-way must be 
zoned.  The property owner is requesting that the unzoned, abandoned, right-of-way area 
be zoned General Business (GB) to make it consistent with the adjoining property.   Staff 
supports this request. 
 
The Planning Board recommended approval at their May 14, 2013 meeting. 
 
 
 
THE APPLICATION AND RELATED MATERIALS ARE AVAILABLE ON THE COUNTY’S WEBSITE:   
 
Board of Commissioners:  www.co.currituck.nc.us/board-of-commissioners-minutes-current.cfm 
 

8

http://www.co.currituck.nc.us/board-of-commissioners-minutes-current.cfm


PLANNING BOARD DISCUSSION (5-14-13) 
Mr. Cooper stated that Pat’s Way will only access Mr. Innes property and he will continue 
to use this as a driveway named Pat’s Way. The Fyvie Drive new access does not affect 
anyone’s access to their property. There are no drainage concerns with either access.  
 
Mr. Craddock stated that Lot 2 and Lot 3 will not be accessed by Pat’s Way, but by Fyvie 
Drive. 
 
Ms. Glave stated she will work with Harry Lee, Currituck County GIS, to make necessary 
address changes. 
 
ACTION 
Ms. Newbern moved to approve PB 13-05 as presented. Mr. Cartwright seconded the 
motion. Ayes:  Wilson, R. Bell, C. Bell, Cooper, Cartwright, Newbern, and Clark. Nays:  
Craddock. 
 

9



 
 

10



 A
ttachm

ent #
1 

 

 
       

11



 A
ttachm

ent #
2 

 

 

12



LIBRARY BOARD OF TRUSTEES
4 Year Terms

Nominated Date of
Incumbent by New Appointee Nominated by Appointment End of Term

Unexpired Term
Shelly Haskell* District 1 Vance Aydlett 5/18/2009             6/30/2013

Dr. Norman Dahm** District 2 David Griggs 5/18/2009 2nd       6/30/2013
 Unexpired Term

Colleen Umphlett* District 3 Butch Petrey 3/1/2010             6/30/2013

Joann DiBello* District 4 Kevin McCord 7/20/2009  1st      6/30/2013

Lisa Rose* District 5 Marion Gilbert 6/15/2009 1st       6/30/2013

George Gregory* At-Large Paul Martin 5/18/2009 1st       6/30/2013

Rhonda Cheek At-Large Paul O'Neal 6/2010 6/30/2014

Dr. Alison Boone-Heyder 9/2/2008 1st       6/30/2012

*May be Reappointed
**To Be Replaced
George Gregory appt. to EARL 7/16/2012

13



GAME COMMISSION
2 Year Terms

Nominated Date of
Incumbent by New Appointee Nominated by Appointment End of Term

2nd term
Richard Williams District 1 Vance Aydlett 5/7/2012 6/1/2014

1st term
Jeremy Midgette District 2 David Griggs 5/7/2012 6/1/2014

1st term
Andy Newbern District 3 Butch Petrey 5/7/2012 6/1/2014

2nd term
Clay Cartwright** District 4 Kevin McCord 5/16/2011 6/1/2013

3rd term
Willie Austin** District 5 Marion Gilbert 6/20/2011 6/1/2013

1st term 
Chandler Sawyer* At-Large Paul Martin 5/16/2011 6/1/2013

2nd term 
Jimmy Markert** At-Large Paul O'Neal 5/16/2011 6/1/2013

* May be Reappointed
** To Be Replaced

14



15



16



17



18



Number 2013136

Debit Credit

Decrease Revenue or Increase Revenue or
Account Description Increase Expense Decrease Expense

60808 587059 T T - OCEAN SANDS CONSTRUCTION 3,578,312
60390 499900 RETAINED EARNINGS APPROPRIATED 3,578,312$               

3,578,312$  3,578,312$  

Explanation:

6

Minute Book # ___________,  Page # ________________

Journal # _____________________ Clerk to the Board

BUDGET AMENDMENT

The Currituck County Board of Commissioners, at a meeting on the 17th day of June, 2013, passed the 
following amendment to the budget resolution for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2013.

Account Number

Ocean Sands Water and Sewer District Fund (60) - Increase appropriations to transfer funds for Phase I of 
the Ocean Sands Wastewater Treatment Plant replacement.

Net Budget Effect: Ocean Sands Water and Sewer District (60) - Increased by $3,578,312.

19

http://www.pdffactory.com
http://www.pdffactory.com


Number 2013136

Debit Credit

Decrease Revenue or Increase Revenue or
Account Description Increase Expense Decrease Expense

10550 503500 Temporary Services 1,500
10550 503000 Part time Salaries 1,500$  

1,500$  1,500$  

Explanation:

6

Minute Book # ___________,  Page # ________________

Journal # _____________________ Clerk to the Board

BUDGET AMENDMENT

The Currituck County Board of Commissioners, at a meeting on the 17th day of June, 2013, passed the 
following amendment to the budget resolution for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2013.

Account Number

Airport (10550) - Transfer budgeted funds for a Temporary Airport Lineman to cover a position for the 
remainder of this fiscal year due to an illness.

Net Budget Effect: Operating Fund (10) - No change.

20

http://www.pdffactory.com
http://www.pdffactory.com


Number 2013137

Debit Credit

Decrease Revenue or Increase Revenue or
Account Description Increase Expense Decrease Expense

67878 532000 Supplies 500$
67878 533800 Chemicals 7,000$
67878 513000 Utilities 1,500$  
67878 561000 Professional Services 1,300
67390 495057 T F - Moyock Central Sewer Construction 50,000$  
67390 495010 T F - Operating Fund 50,000$  
67360 470000 Utilities Charges 20,000
67878 588000 Contingency 72,700

57878 587067 T T - Moyock Central Sewer Operations 50,000
57878 596100 Professional Services 50,000$  

10990 587067 T T - Moyock Central Sewer Operations 50,000
10310 400012 Ad Valorem Taxes - 2012 Levy 50,000$  

201,500$  201,500$  

Explanation:

Moyock Central Sewer Construction (57) - Increased by $50,000.

Moyock Central Sewer Operations (67) - Increased by $80,000.

Minute Book # ___________,  Page # ________________

Journal # _____________________ Clerk to the Board

BUDGET AMENDMENT

The Currituck County Board of Commissioners, at a meeting on the 17th day of June, 2013, passed the 
following amendment to the budget resolution for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2013.

Account Number

Moyock Central Sewer System Operations (67878); Moyock Central Sewer Construction (57878); Operating 
Fund Transfers (10990) - Transfer funds to close out a portion of the Moyock Sewer Construction Fund and 
transfer funds from the operating fund as needed to the Moyock Central Sewer Fund for the remainder of this 
fiscal year.

Net Budget Effect: Operating Fund (10) - Increased by $50,000.

21

http://www.pdffactory.com
http://www.pdffactory.com


CURRITUCK COUNTY 
NORTH CAROLINA 
June 3, 2013 

The Board of Commissioners met at 7:00 p.m. for its regularly scheduled meeting at the Historic 
Courthouse in the Commissioners Meeting Room with the following members present: 
Chairman Paul O’Neal, Vice-Chair Paul Martin, Commissioners Aydlett, Gilbert, Griggs, 
McCord, and Petrey.  

A) Invocation
B) Pledge of Allegiance

Reverend Glenn McCranie, Navy Chaplin, Retired, was present to give the invocation and lead 
the Pledge of Allegiance. 

C) Approval of Agenda
Chairman O’Neal noted person making the request on Public Hearing and Action on PB 13-05 
Pat’s Way had asked to continue.  He also noted the addition of a Closed Session pursuant to 
G.S. 143-318.11(a)(6).  Commissioner Gilbert moved to approve the Agenda as amended.  
Commissioner Martin seconded the motion.  Motion carried. 

APPROVED AGENDA 

7:00 pm Call to Order 

A) Invocation – Rev. Glenn McCranie, Navy Chaplin, Retired
B) Pledge of Allegiance
C) Approval of Agenda
D) Public Comment

Please limit comments to items not appearing on the regular agenda; please limit comments to 3
minutes.

Public Hearings 

A) Public Hearing and Possible Action on Annual Budget for the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2014
B) Public Hearing and Action: PB 10-02 Beach Jeeps of Corolla: Request to amend a Use Permit to

reduce the permitted number of tour vehicles. The property is located at 111 Austin Road, Unit H, Tax
Map 115B, Parcel 2P2B, Poplar Branch Beach Township.

C) Public Hearing and Action: PB 13-05 Pat’s Way: Request zoning an abandoned Right-of-Way (Pat's
Way) to General Business (GB), located in Barco, Tax Map 60, Parcel 55D, Crawford Township.
CONTINUED

New Business 

A) Board Appointments:

22



2 June 3, 2013 

1. Appointments to Fire-EMS Advisory Board (FEAB)
2. Appointments to Whalehead Trust Board of Directors

B) Consent Agenda:
1. Budget Amendments
2. Approval of May 20, 2013 Minutes
3. Approval Travel Policy for ABC Board pursuant to GS 18B-700(g2) same Travel Policy as the

County
4. Pittard, Perry & Crone Inc - Audit Contract for fiscal year ending June 30, 2013
5. CDBG Monthly Status Report
6. ITS Surplus Resolution
7. Approval of Mike Painter as regular member of the Board of Adjustment due to

Christian Conner's resignation
C) Commissioner’s Report
D) County Manager’s Report

Special Meeting 

Tourism Development Authority 

Public Hearing and Possible Action on the FY 2014 Tourism Development Authority Budget 

Closed Session 

Adjourn 

D) Public Comment

Chairman O’Neal opened the public comment period. 

Mary Etheridge, Shawboro, stated she had been involved in litigation with the County for two 
years concerning illegal spot zoning.  Although the courts had ruled in her favor, the County did 
not pay her legal fees.   

Toni Tabb, Moyock, spoke about the budget and increase in taxes not only in the county but 
across the board.  She also mentioned the IRS recent actions and the need to cut frivolous 
expenses.  Due to the economy, it could not be just business as usual.     

There being no further comments, Chairman O’Neal closed the public hearing. 

Public Hearings 

A) Public Hearing and Possible Action on Annual Budget for the Fiscal Year
Ending June 30, 2014.

County Attorney Ike McRee briefly outlined the 1930 North Carolina Machinery Act which 
requires the County to revaluate property at least every 8 years.  He also described the function 
of the Board of Equalization and Review.   

Commissioner Griggs asked about the cost of revaluation.  County Manager Dan Scanlon 
responded with $800-900,000 of which 1/8 is funded during each budget year. 

County Manager Scanlon gave a presentation on the proposed balanced budget.  He listed the 

23



3 June 3, 2013 

departments and/or services which would have to be cut if the tax rate were not increased to the 
revenue neutral rate of $.485.  He also clarified the sources of funding for the proposed animal 
shelter and other capital projects which are not funded by ad valorem taxes.   

Chairman O’Neal opened the Public Hearing. 

Toni Tabb, Moyock, questioned funding for the COA building if sales tax revenues were 
insufficient.  She commended the County on its initiatives which resulted in savings on 
employee health insurance.   

Jessica Winterwerp, Currituck, had reviewed the proposed budget in detail and had several 
questions/suggestions on “trimming the fat” from the budget.  She suggested scheduling more 
public meetings before adoption.  Mr. Scanlon addressed several of her concerns and was open 
to additional input from the citizens in future years.   

There being no further comments, Chairman O’Neal closed the Public Hearing. 

Chairman O’Neal noted that Currituck County has only one government, no municipalities; 
therefore, the County must provide all services for its citizens and visitors.   

Commissioner Petrey moved to adopt the budget as presented.  Commissioner McCord 
seconded the motion.  Motion carried unanimously. 

24



4 June 3, 2013 

1-3.4 

 COUNTY OF CURRITUCK 
BUDGET ORDINANCE 
For the Year Ending June 30, 2014 

BE IT ORDAINED by the Board of Commissioners, County of Currituck, North Carolina that the following estimated 
resources, appropriations, and memoranda are adopted for the fiscal year commencing July 1, 2013 and ending June 
30, 2014. 

SECTION 1. GENERAL FUND 

A. Estimated Resources: 
Ad Valorem Taxes $ 26,414,836 
Other Taxes and Licenses 5,287,500 
Intergovernmental Revenues 3,012,692 
Permits and Fees 2,132,529 
Sales and Services 703,550 
Investment Earnings 79,000 
Miscellaneous 103,000 

37,733,107 

Transfers In 7,338,393 
Fund Balance Appropriated 3,457,216  10,795,609 

TOTAL ESTIMATED RESOURCES  $ 48,528,716 

B. Appropriations: 
Administration $ 552,848 
Legal 313,477 
Governing Body 134,233 
Elections 178,967 
Finance 416,314 
Information Technology Services 642,339 
Human Resources 150,971 
Tax 514,490 
Public Works 1,158,428 
Public Utilities 225,716 

25



5 June 3, 2013 

1-3.5 

Register of Deeds 613,309 
Court Facilities 224,465 
Agency Appropriations 41,200 
Central Services 713,521 
Sheriff 6,179,987 
Detention Center 2,089,092 
Animal Control 400,304 
Jury Commission 2,450 
Emergency Medical Services 6,554,383 
Emergency Management 137,155 
Communications 889,516 
Inspections 554,378 
Fire Services 

Moyock Vol Fire Department 230,000 
Crawford Vol Fire Department 315,675 
Lower Currituck Vol Fire Department 327,864 
Corolla Vol Fire & Rescue Squad 287,375 
Carova Bch Vol Fire Department 204,400 
Knotts Island Vol Fire Department 205,000 

Medical Examiner 20,000 
Airport 499,322 
Inter County Transit Authority 78,856 
Soil Conservation 138,541 
Forestry 76,250 
Cooperative Extension 491,555 
Economic Development 256,073 
Planning 759,792 
Health Administration 127,000 
Mental Health 63,000 
Social Services Administration 2,926,053 
Public Assistance 1,198,199 
County Assistance 71,439 
Juvenile Justice Programs 101,879 
Parks & Recreation 740,219 
Rural Center 693,002 
Library 531,453 
Senior Center 329,826 

26



6 June 3, 2013 

1-3.6 

Local Current Expense 9,000,218 
Capital Outlay 1,000,000 
College of the Albemarle 190,000 
Bonds Payable 845,000 
Notes Payable 2,791,888 
Interest 325,498 
Appropriations to Other Funds 1,015,796 

TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS  $ 48,528,716 

SECTION 2. TOURISM DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 

A. Estimated Resources: 
Other taxes and licenses 9,900,000 
Other revenues 272,842 
Transfer from other funds 113,987 
Fund Balance Appropriated 243,896.00 

TOTAL ESTIMATED RESOURCES  $ 10,530,725 

B. Appropriations: 
Tourism Promotion 3,427,294 
Tourism Related Expenditures 7,103,431 

TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS  $ 10,530,725 

SECTION 3. REVALUATION FUND 

A. Estimated Resources: 
Investment earnings 2,000 
Transfer In 121,000 

TOTAL ESTIMATED RESOURCES  $ 123,000 

B. Appropriations: 
Operations 123,000 

TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS  $ 123,000 

27



7 June 3, 2013 

1-3.7 

SECTION 4. EMERGENCY EQUIPMENT REPLACEMENT FUND 

A. Estimated Resources: 
Investment earnings 1,113 
Transfer In 267,000 

TOTAL ESTIMATED RESOURCES  $ 268,113 

B. Appropriations: 
Capital Outlay 268,113 

TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS  $ 268,113 

SECTION 5. EMERGENCY TELEPHONE SYSTEM FUND 

A. Estimated Resources: 
Other taxes and licenses 140,124 
Investment earnings 3,000 
Fund Balance Appropriated 157,676 

TOTAL ESTIMATED RESOURCES  $ 300,800 

B. Appropriations: 
Operations 134,300 
Capital Outlay 166,500 

TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS  $ 300,800 

SECTION 6. GUINEA MILL WATERSHED IMPROVEMENT FUND 

A. Estimated Resources: 
Special district taxes 10,303 

TOTAL ESTIMATED RESOURCES  $ 10,303 

B. Appropriations: 
Operations 10,303 

TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS  $ 10,303 

28



8 June 3, 2013 

1-3.8 

SECTION 7. HOG BRIDGE DITCH WATERSHED IMPROVEMENT FUND 

A. Estimated Resources: 
Special district taxes 1,194 

TOTAL ESTIMATED RESOURCES  $ 1,194 

B. Appropriations: 
Operations 1,194 

TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS  $ 1,194 

SECTION 8. MOYOCK WATERSHED IMPROVEMENT FUND 

A. Estimated Resources: 
Special district taxes 15,996 

TOTAL ESTIMATED RESOURCES  $ 15,996 

B. Appropriations: 
Operations 15,996 

TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS  $ 15,996 

SECTION 9. NORTHWEST WATERSHED IMPROVEMENT FUND 

A. Estimated Resources: 
Special district taxes 2,543 

TOTAL ESTIMATED RESOURCES  $ 2,543 

B. Appropriations: 
Operations 2,543 

TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS  $ 2,543 

29



9 June 3, 2013 

1-3.9 

SECTION 10. WHALEHEAD WATERSHED IMPROVEMENT FUND 

A. Estimated Resources: 
Special district taxes 834,211 
Appropriated Fund Balance 96,375 

TOTAL ESTIMATED RESOURCES  $ 930,586 

B. Appropriations: 
Operations 930,586 

TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS  $ 930,586 

SECTION 11. WHALEHEAD BEACH SOLID WASTE COLLECTION 
& DISPOSAL SERVICE DISTRICT 

A. Estimated Resources: 
Special district taxes 134,550 
Investment earnings 500 

TOTAL ESTIMATED RESOURCES  $ 135,050 

B. Appropriations: 
Operations 135,050 

TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS  $ 135,050 

SECTION 12. CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT FUND 

A. Estimated Resources: 
Other taxes and licenses 1,712,453 

TOTAL ESTIMATED RESOURCES  $ 1,712,453 

B. Appropriations: 
Transfers out 1,712,453 

TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS  $ 1,712,453 

30



10 June 3, 2013 

1-3.10 

SECTION 13. SCHOOL CAPITAL FUND 

A. Estimated Resources: 
Other taxes and licenses 1,618,186 
Fund Balance Appropriated 410,000 

TOTAL ESTIMATED RESOURCES  $ 2,028,186 

B. Appropriations: 
Transfers out 2,028,186 

TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS  $ 2,028,186 

SECTION 14. TRANSFER TAX CAPITAL FUND 

A. Estimated Resources: 
Other taxes and licenses 2,290,700 
Investment earnings 50,000 
Appropriated fund balance 200,000 

TOTAL ESTIMATED RESOURCES  $ 2,540,700 

B. Appropriations: 
Operations 700 
Transfers out 2,540,000 

TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS  $ 2,540,700 

SECTION 15. LAND BANKING FUND 

A. Estimated Resources: 
Transfers in 300,000 

TOTAL ESTIMATED RESOURCES  $ 300,000 

B. Appropriations: 
Transfers out 300,000 

TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS  $ 300,000 

31



11 June 3, 2013 

1-3.11 

SECTION 16. OCEAN SANDS WATER AND SEWER FUND 

A. Estimated Resources: 
Special district taxes 220,357 
Operating revenues 1,368,750 
Non-operating revenues 33,379 

TOTAL ESTIMATED RESOURCES  $ 1,622,486 

B. Appropriations: 
Administration 27,937 
Water Treatment Operations 463,400 
Sewer Treatment Operations 1,131,149 

TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS  $ 1,622,486 

SECTION 17. MAINLAND WATER FUND 

A. Estimated Resources: 
Operating revenues 2,995,349 
Non-operating revenues 6,000 

TOTAL ESTIMATED RESOURCES  $ 3,001,349 

B. Appropriations: 
Administration 195,000 
Water Treatment Operations 1,880,196 
Debt Service 890,000 
Capital Outlay 36,153 

TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS  $ 3,001,349 

32



12 June 3, 2013 

1-3.12 

SECTION 18. NEWTOWN ROAD SEWER FUND 

A. Estimated Resources: 
Operating revenues 10,605 
Non-operating revenues 500 
Retained earnings appropriated 12,305 

TOTAL ESTIMATED RESOURCES  $ 23,410 

B. Appropriations: 
Sewer Treatment Operations 23,410 

TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS  $ 23,410 

SECTION 19. SOLID WASTE FUND 

A. Estimated Resources: 
Operating revenues 2,650,000 
Non-operating revenues 208,000 
Transfers in 600,000 
Retained earnings appropriated 885,681 

TOTAL ESTIMATED RESOURCES  $ 4,343,681 

B. Appropriations: 
Administration 165,921 
Solid Waste Operations 4,169,360 
Capital Outlay 8,400 

TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS  $ 4,343,681 

SECTION 20. MAPLE COMMERCE PARK FUND 

A. Estimated Resources: 
Operating revenues 21,250 
Non-operating revenues 27,796 

TOTAL ESTIMATED RESOURCES  $ 49,046 

B. Appropriations: 
Water Operations 49,046 

 $ 49,046 

33



13 June 3, 2013 

1-3.13 

SECTION 21. MOYOCK COMMONS SEWER FUND 

A. Estimated Resources: 
Special district taxes 17,237 
Operating revenues 101,461 
Appropriated Retained Earnings 30,782 

TOTAL ESTIMATED RESOURCES  $ 149,480 

B. Appropriations: 
Administration 7,756 
Sewer Operations 141,724 

TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS  $ 149,480 

SECTION 22. SOUTHERN OUTER BANKS WATER FUND 

A. Estimated Resources: 
Operating revenues 3,557,976 
Non-operating revenues 177,810 

TOTAL ESTIMATED RESOURCES  $ 3,735,786 

B. Appropriations: 
Administration 133,635 
Water Operations 2,118,365 
Capital assets 271,800 
Transfers out 1,211,986 

 $ 3,735,786 

34



14 June 3, 2013 

1-3.14 

SECTION 23. MOYOCK CENTRAL SEWER FUND 

A. Estimated Resources: 
Operating revenues 332,038 
Non-operating revenues 500 

TOTAL ESTIMATED RESOURCES  $ 332,538 

B. Appropriations: 
Administration 76,478 
Water Operations 256,060 

 $ 332,538 

SECTION 24. WALNUT ISLAND SEWER FUND 

A. Estimated Resources: 
Operating revenues 111,000 
Non-operating revenues 600 

TOTAL ESTIMATED RESOURCES  $ 111,600 

B. Appropriations: 
Administration 67,192 
Water Operations 44,408 

 $ 111,600 

SECTION 25. POST-EMPLOYMENT RETIREMENT BENEFITS FUND 

A. Estimated Resources: 
Retiree benefits 225,599 

TOTAL ESTIMATED RESOURCES  $ 225,599 

B. Appropriations: 
Operations 225,599 

 $ 225,599 

35



15 June 3, 2013 

1-3.15 

SECTION 26. AD VALOREM TAX RATE ESTABLISHED 

There is hereby levied a tax rate of Forty-Eight and One Half cents ($0.485) per One Hundred dollars ($100) 
valuation of all real and personal property situated in the County of Currituck on January 1, 2013 for the 
purpose of raising the revenue listed as "Ad Valorem Taxes" in Section 1, Part A of this ordinance. 

The rate of tax is based on estimated total valuation of property for the purpose of taxation of $5,615,684,858 
and an estimated rate of collection of 98.43%. The estimated rate of collection is based on the fiscal year 
ended June 30, 2012. 

SECTION 27. SPECIAL DISTRICT TAX RATES ESTABLISHED 

There is hereby levied tax rates (in cents) for Special Districts per One Hundred dollars ($100) valuation of all 
real and personal property situated in said district on January 1, 2013 for the purpose of raising the revenue 
listed as "Special District Taxes" in Part A, Sections 6 through 10 and Section 19 of this ordinance. 

Guinea Mill Watershed Improvement District 0.010 
Hog Bridge Ditch Watershed Improvement District 0.010 
Moyock Watershed Improvement District 0.150 
Northwest Watershed Improvement District 0.200 
Whalehead Watershed Improvement District 0.155 
Whalehead Beach Solid Waste Collection & Disposal Service District 0.025 
Moyock Commons Sewer District 0.100 
Ocean Sands Water & Sewer District 0.050 

SECTION 28. ANIMAL TAX RATE ESTABLISHED 

There is hereby levied an animal tax of Three dollars ($3.00) for all male and spayed female dogs and Six 
dollars ($6.00) for all fertile female dogs listed for taxes as of January 1, 2013. 

SECTION 29. SOLID WASTE COLLECTION AND DISPOSAL RATE ESTABLISHED 

There is hereby established a disposal fee pursuant to Section 11-5(a) of the Solid Waste Ordinance of 
Seventy-one dollars ($71.00) per ton for in-County waste and Eighty-one dollars ($81.00) per ton for out-of- 
County waste. 

36



16 June 3, 2013 

1-3.16 

There is hereby levied an annual solid waste collection and disposal availability fee pursuant to Section 11-5(b) 
of the Solid Waste Ordinance of Two Hundred Fifty dollars ($250) for all units on the Southern Outer Banks  
and One Hundred Fourteen dollars ($114) for all units located elsewhere within the County of Currituck. 

SECTION 30. EMPLOYEE COMPENSATION 

Employee compensation is included in summary form. Individual employee salaries are hereby approved and 
set as presented in the supporting documents presented as part of the budget deliberation process and 
officially filed with the Human Resources Director. 

SECTION 31. OTHER FEES 

The County of Currituck charges various fees. These fees are detailed in the master Fee schedule that is 
presented in the appendix of the budget document. 

SECTION 32. DISBURSEMENT OF SCHOOL APPROPRIATIONS 

The amount here within appropriated as School Local Current Expense shall be disbursed to the school 
finance officer in twelve (12) equal monthly installments. 

The amount here within appropriated as School Capital Outlay shall be disbursed to the school finance officer 
according to a mutually agreed disbursing schedule. 

A quarterly progress report shall be furnished by the Board of Education to the Board of Commissioners 
detailing the extent to which all school capital outlay and school capital construction monies have been 
expended. 

SECTION 33. SPECIAL APPROPRIATIONS AND RESTRICTIONS 

The Budget Officer is hereby authorized to transfer appropriations within the funds as contained herein under 
the following conditions: 

a. He may transfer amounts within the same department within the same fund up to Ten Thousand dollars
($10,000) providing an official report on such transfers at a regular meeting of the Board of
Commissioners.

37



17 June 3, 2013 

1-3.17 

b. He may transfer amounts between departments within the same fund up to One Thousand dollars
($1,000) providing an official report on such transfers at a regular meeting of the Board of
Commissioners.

c. He may appropriate fund balance to salaries and benefits in order to increase salaries of employees
who have met requirements to increase certifications required by the County providing an official report
on such transfers at a regular meeting of the Board of Commissioners.

d. He may make inter-fund loans for a period of not more than sixty (60) days.

e. 
He may not transfer any amounts between funds or from any contingency line items within any funds. 

SECTION 34. CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS 

The County Manager and the County Attorney are hereby authorized to execute contractual documents under 
the following conditions: 

a. They may execute contracts for construction or repair projects which do not require formal competitive
bid procedures.

b. They may award contracts, reject bids, re-advertise for bids, waive bid bonds or bid deposit
requirements, and waive performance and payment bond requirements for all formal bids of apparatus,
supplies, materials and equipment as stated in G. S. 143-129.

c. They may execute contracts for (1) purchases of apparatus, supplies, and materials, or equipment
which are within the budgeted departmental appropriations; (2) leases of personal property for a
duration of one year or less and within budgeted departmental appropriations; and (3) services which
are within budgeted departmental appropriations.

d. They may execute grant agreements to and from public and non-profit organizations which are within
budgeted appropriations, unless a grantor organization requires execution by the Board of
Commissioners.

e. They may execute contracts, as the lessor or lessee of real property, which are of a duration of one
year or less which are within the budgeted departmental appropriations.

38



18 June 3, 2013 

1-3.18 

SECTION 35. MEMORANDA 

A. Officers: 
Daniel F. Scanlon II is the Budget Officer 
Mary S. Gilbert is the Clerk to the Board 
Eileen M. Wirth is the Deputy Clerk to the Board 
Sandra L. Hill is the Finance Director 
Bridget T. Brinkley is the Deputy Finance Director 
Tracy L. Sample is the Tax Collector 
Michelle Rose is the Deputy Tax Collector 

B. Facsimile Signatures: 
The use of facsimile signature machines, signature stamps, or similar devices in signing checks and 
drafts is hereby authorized; however, off-line checks and pre-audit certification requires in the minimum 
of one original authorizing signature. The Finance Director is hereby charged with the custody of all 
facsimile stamps, plates or other devices. 

C. Official Depositories 
The official depositories of the County of Currituck are: 

Bank of America, North Carolina 
Branch Bank and Trust, North Carolina 
North Carolina Cash Management Trust, Charlotte, North Carolina 
Towne Bank of Currituck, North Carolina 
Vantage South Bank, Currituck, North Carolina 
Wells Fargo, North Carolina 

D. Bank for Imprest Expenditure Accounts for Health Benefits: 
Citibank, N.A. 

E. Daily deposits are required by all departments when the amount of money held on had sums to Two 
Hundred Fifty dollars ($250). 

F. Returned Check or Electronic Funds Transfer Fees: 

The County will assess a returned check charge consistent with G.S. 25-3-512 on all checks or 
electronic funds transfers returned to the County due to insufficient or unavailable funds, except for the 

payment of taxes. The returned check fee will be $25.00 per item returned. This fee will also be charged 

39



19 June 3, 2013 

for ACH or credit card transactions that are not paid due to insufficient funds. 

G. Policy on Appropriations: 

The Board of County Commissioners will not consider supplemental appropriations for any service, function, 
purpose or activity that could have been reasonably considered during the budget process. 

SECTION 36. USE OF BUDGET ORDINANCE 

The Budget Officer and the Finance Director shall use this budget ordinance for administration of the budget and for the 
accounting system.

8-4.1 

40



20 June 3, 2013 

CURRITUCK  COUNTY 
NORTH CAROLINA 

SALARY AND COMPENSATION RESOLUTION 
FOR THE 2013-2014 FISCAL YEAR 

BE IT RESOLVED by the County Commissioners that the following salaries and other compensation are 
established for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2013 and ending June 30, 2014. 

SECTION 1 - BOARDS 

Board of Adjustments 
Members $50. per meeting 

Airport Advisory Board 
Members $50. per meeting 

Board of Commissioners 
Chairman $1300. per month 

Members $1200. per month 

Stormwater Advisory Board 

Members $50. per meeting 

Economic Development Board 
Members $50. per meeting 

Tourism Development Authority $50. per meeting 
Members 

Board of Elections 
Chairman $75. per month plus $8.00  per meeting hour plus travel 
reimbursement at per diem rate 
Members $25. per month plus $8.00  per meeting hour plus travel 
reimbursement at per diem rateChief Judge $150. on election day, $20. on canvass day, 

$15. on instruction day plus travel 
8-4.1 

41



21 June 3, 2013 

Judge $100. on election day, $15. on instruction day 
plus travel reimbursement at per diem rate 

Assistants $85 on election day, $15. on instruction day plus travel 
reimbursement at per diem rate 

Board of Equalization 
Members $100. per day; $50. per half day 

Land Transfer Tax Appeals Board 
Members $50. per meeting 

Library Board of Trustees 
Members $50. per meeting 

Other 
Jury Commission $50. per day 

Planning Board 
Members $50. per meeting 

Social Services Board 
Members $50. per meeting 

Chairman $75. per meeting 

Parks and Recreation Board 
Members $50. per meeting 

Fire And EMS Board 
Members $50. per meeting 

Senior Citizens Advisory  Board $50. per meeting 

Nutrition Board $50. per meeting 

8-4.1 

42



22 June 3, 2013 

Payments made to board members (except the Board 
of  Commissioners) are considered  fees for the 
payment of all expenses incurred while serving in a 
voluntary capacity unless additional compensation is 
provided for in the enacting ordinance. 

SECTION 3 - NEW APPOINTMENTS 
Compensation 
The  County Manager  is authorized  without further 
approval to enroll new personnel at a grade level not 
to exceed that of step 3; however, no new position 
may be established or  salaries increased without the 
approval of the County Board of Commissioners. 

Minimum Wage 

Not withstanding the above, the County Manager may 
raise the salary of any employee to the Federal 
minimum wage level without further approval from the 
County Board of Commissioners. 

County employee benefits, including but not limited to 
vacation leave, holiday leave, sick leave, retirement, 
401k, and health insurance, shall not be provided for 
part-time and temporary employees unless otherwise 
provided for by the Board of Commissioners. 

PART-TIME/TEMPORARY PAY RATES 
Hourl y 
EMT B  $13.41 
EMT I   $ 15.16 
EMT P  $18.66 
Airport Lineman - $13.41 
Airport Manager - $25.05 
Telecommunicator Trainee $14.29 
Telecommunicator $15.16 

8-4.1 

43



23 June 3, 2013 

Library Asst.  $12.53 
Library Assoc. $14.29 
Deputy I  $16.91 
Deputy II $17.79 Detention 
Officer $ 13.41 
Janitor - Parks & Rec $7.25 
Maintenance Helper - Parks & Rec $10.78 
Scorekeepers $7.25/hr 
Camp Counselors $7.25-$10 
Site Coordinator - Parks & Rec $14.50 
Visitor Relations Associate $12.53 

Gam e Rate 
Referee - Basketball $18/game - 5-9 yr 
Referee - Basketball $20/game - 10-15 yr 
Referee - Flag Football $18/game all ages 
Referee - Soccer $18/game all ages 
Umpire  $18/game 7-8yr Baseball & 8U Softball Umpire 
(Non-certified)   $22/game  9-10yr  Baseball 
& 10U-16U Softball 
Umpire  (Certified) $24/game  9-10yr  Baseball  & 
10U-16U Softball 

Umpire (Non-certified)  $24/game 11-15yr Baseball 
Umpire (Certified)  $27/game 11-15yr Baseball 
Umpire (Non-certified) $27/game 16U Softball Umpire 
(Certified) $30/game 16U Softball 

SECTION 5 - TRAVEL 

Per Diem Rate 
Subject to the approval of their department head, 
employees are entitled to travel reimbursement for 
use of a personal vehicle while transacting County 
business at the current standard mileage  rate allowed 
by the Internal Revenue Service.

8-4.1 

44



24 June 3, 2013 

CURRITUCK COUNTY 
CLASSIFICATION BY SALARY GRADE 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2014 

SALARY 
GRADE 

SALARY 
RANGE 

CLASSIFICATION 

50 $22,440 Custodian 
Human Resource Aide 
Senior Center Asst.  Coordinator 

51 $24,261 Maintenance Helper 
SOS Assistant 
Park Attendant 

52 $26,082 Accounting Clerk I 
Deputy Register of Deeds 
Visitor Relations Coordinator 
4H-SOS Associate 
Library 
Assistant I 
Permit Officer 
Processing/Public Information Assistant IV 
Secretary I 
Tax Clerk 
Line Maint Mechanic 
Helper DCI CP/Clerk 
Meter Reader 
Recreation Assistant 

  53 $27,904 Library Assistant II 
Detention Officer Rural 
Center Manager Tax Clerk 
II 
Sales & Market Associate 
Utilities Customer Serv Rep 
Public Info Asst V 
EMT Basic/Firefighter 
Maintenance/Repair 

54 $29,724 Administrative Secretary 
Agricultural Technician 
District Administrator 
Recreation Specialist 
Accounting Clerk II 
Asst Register of Deeds Income 
Main Caseworker I Animal Control 
Officer 
4H Program Assistant 

45



25 June 3, 2013 

Telecommunication Trainee 
F&C Sciences Associate 
Deputy Director of Elections 
Supervisor Visitor Centers 
Secretary II 
Intake Officer 
Library Associate I 

55 $31,547 Superintendent of Parks 
Maintenance/Repair Worker Electrician 
Promo Coordinator 
EMT Intermediate FF 
Emerg Mgt Program Asst 
Deputy Tax Collector 
Tourism Event Coordinator 
Accounting Clerk III 
Telecommunicator I 
Utilities Customer Serv Supervisor 
*Library Associate II
Administrative Assist I 
Line Maint. Mechanic 

56 $33,370 Sergeant Detention Officer 
Income Maint Caseworker II 
Sergeant Detention Officer 
Telecommunicator II  
Deputy Trainee 
Video Production Assistant 
Animal Control Supervisor 
Support Technician 
Wastewater ORC Trainee 
Water Plant Operator Trainee 
Planner Technician 

57 $35,190 *Administrative Assistant II
Development Code Enforcement Officer 
Deputy Sheriff I 
Rural Center Director 
Building Inspector I 
Human Resources Asst 
Accounting Technician 
Wastewater ORC 
Deputy Emerg Management Coord 
Water Plant Operator/Lab Technician 
Maintenance Supervisor 
Water Plant Operator 
Social Worker I 

8-4.2 

46



26 June 3, 2013 

58 $37,011 Tax Appraiser 
Deputy Sheriff II 
Training Officer 
Income Maint Caseworker III 
Income Maint Investigator II 

59 $38,833 Legal Assistant 
Marketing Program Mgr 
EMT Paramedic/Firefighter 
*Lieutenant Detention Officer
Deputy Sheriff III 
Detective I 
Financial & Budget Asst 
Building Inspector II probationary/ FQ Inspect I 
Planner I 

60 $40,655 Fire Marshal 
Detective II 
GIS Tax Mapper 
Sr Center Coordinator 
Information and Communicator Officer 
Soil & Water Technician 
E-Marketing/Web Development Specialist 
EMS Lieutenant 
Web/AV Specialist 
*Communications Supervisor
GIS Coordinator 
*Income Maint Supervisor II
Social Worker II 

61 $42,477 Building Inspector III probationary/ FQ BI II 
Detective Sergeant 
Planner II 
Patrol Sergeant 
Director of Elections 
Water Distribution Supervisor 

62 $44,298 Social Worker III 
*Building Superintendent
Social Worker Invest/Assess Treatment 
*Jail Superintendent

47



27 June 3, 2013 

63 $46,118 Building Inspector III FQ 
*Administrative Lieutenant
Engineering Technician

*Captain Shift Supervisor
*Captain Training
*Patrol Lieutenant
*Recreation Director

*Social Work Supervisor II
*Water Treatment Plant Supervisor

64 $47,941 *Senior Planner
*Sheriff Captain
* Chief Building Inspector

65 $50,153 *Deputy Chief Fire and EMS
*Chief Deputy Sheriff Dept
*Admin Assistant/ Clerk to Board
*Airport Manager

66 $51,585 *Social Worker Supv III
*Tourism Director
*Public Utilities Superintendent

67 $53,404 *Emerg Mgmt Director
68 $55,226 *Tax Administrator

*IT Director
*Human Resources Director

69 $57,047 
70 $58,924 
71 $60,690 
72 $62,512 
73 $64,333 *Director of Social Services

*Chief of EMS
*Finance Director
*Economic Development Director

74 $66,155 
75 $67,976 
76 $69,798 *Public Utilities Director
77 $71,618 
78 $73,441 *Planning Director
79 $75,263 

48



28 June 3, 2013 

* indicates exempt status

Board determined *County Manager's salary
Board determined *Sheriff's salary
Board determined *Register of Deeds' salary
Board determined *Attorney's salary 

80 $76,860 

81 $78,519 *Engineer

49



29 June 3, 2013 

Currituck County Master Fee Schedule 

Rate and Fee Schedule effective July 1, 2013 

Dept. Description Cost 

Airport Concession Fees - Flight Lessons two or more Currituck based aircraft 
Airport Concession Fees- Flight Lessons no Currituck based aircraft 

$ 75.00  annual 
$     300.00  annual COMMERCIAL 

Airport Concession Fees- Flight Lessons one Currituck based aircraft $     150.00  annual Annual in     Annual w/ 
Airport Concession Fees- Hang Gliding 
Airport Hangar leases, non-commercial 

$  7,000.00  annual Advance 3 yr term    3 yr term 
$  2,760.00  annual, payable $230 per month - Effective 8/1/2013 Monthly 5% Disc      10% Disc     monthly  

Airport Hangars, commercial A-5-T, A-11-T & Office space 2 combined 
Airport Hangars, commercial C-2, C-3, C-4, C-5 
Airport Hangars, commercial A-1-T, A-6-T & office space 1 combined 
Airport Hangars, commercial B-1-C & B-2-C 
Airport Hangars, commercial C-1 

$  5,796.00  Effective 8/1/2013

$  6,555.00  Effective 8/1/2013

$  5,520.00  Effective 8/1/2013

$  5,520.00  Effective 8/1/2013

$  7,590.00  Effective 8/1/2013

$ 483.00   $ 
$ 546.25   $ 
$ 460.00   $ 
$ 460.00   $ 
$ 632.50   $ 

5,506   $ 
6,227   $ 
5,244   $ 
5,244   $ 
7,211   $ 

5,216   $ 
5,900   $ 
4,968   $ 
4,968   $ 
6,831   $ 

435 
492 
414 
414 
569 

Airport Late Fee 
Airport Tie-down leases 
Communications CD: 911 Data 
Communications Copies, 911 transcript 

$ 15.00  Payments received after 10th of each month for each hangar and/or tie-down lease

$ 10.00  per month 
$ 25.00 
$ 1.00  per page 

Community Development Central Permitting Fees: Residential   Commercial 
Community Development New construction and additions $0.25 per sf    $0.35 per sf 
Community Development Alterations $0.10 per sf    $0.12 per sf 
Community Development Chimney/Woodstove $25 $25 
Community Development Decks $0.25 per sf    $0.35 per sf 
Community Development Dune decks and walkways $0.25 per sf    $0.35 per sf 
Community Development Demolition $25 $75 
Community Development Detached Buildings $0.15 per sf   $0.15 per sf 
Community Development Farm Building No permit $0.35 per sf 
Community Development Fuel Pumps $50 per pump 
Community Development Gas (Propane/Natural) $25 $50 
Community Development Insulation (new) $50 $100 
Community Development Insulation (alteration) $25 $50 
Community Development Metal Carport, pre-manufactured No fee No fee 
Community Development Mobile Homes $0.10 per sf    N/A 
Community Development Modulars $0.10 per sf    $0.12 per sf 
Community Development P M E (New) $50 each $100 per suite 
Community Development P M E (Alterations) $25 each $50 per suite 
Community Development Roofing $25 $25 
Community Development Roofing (Shingles only) No permit      No permit 
Community Development County, State, Federal, Non-profit No fee No fee 

Community Development Miscellaneous: 
Community Development Bulkhead, Pier, Dock, Boatlift $50 $50 
Community Development CAMA Minor Permit $100 $100 
Community Development Elevator $0.25 per sf $0.35 per sf 
Community Development Fire Alarm N/A $50 
Community Development Hot Tub $25 $100 
Community Development Moving Permit $0.20 per sf $0.20 per sf 
Community Development Retaining wall $50 $50 
Community Development Swimming Pool (above ground) $25 $100 
Community Development Swimming Pool (in ground) $50 $100 
Community Development Swimming Pool electrical $25 $50 
Community Development Signs (on premise) N/A $25 each 
Community Development Signs (off premise) N/A $50 each 
Community Development Temporary Office N/A $60 
Community Development Tents N/A $50 per tent 
Community Development Towers $0.12 per unit 
Community Development Window, Door , Siding $25 $25 
Community Development Wind Turbine $200 each $500 each 
Community Development 
Community Development 

Minimum permit fee $25 $25 

Community Development Projects that do not fall within the categories above shall be figured on a cost of construction basis as follows: 
Community Development 
Community Development $1-$5,000 $50 $100 
Community Development Over $5,000 $10 per $1,00 $20 per $1,000 
Community Development 
Community Development Inspection Division Fees: 
Community Development Re-inspection $50 per trip   $50 per trip 
Community Development Working without a permit Greater of  $25 or 25% o $25 or 25% of cost 
Community Development Private Schools/Daycare inspection N/A $100 
Community Development ABC Inspections N/A $100 
Community Development Planning Division Fees: 
Community Development Minor Subdivision (Conventional) $25 per lot     $25 per lot 
Community Development Private Access or Family Subdivision $50 per lot     N/A 
Community Development Sign Return Fee (Unlawfully placed signs) $25 $25 8-6.1 

50



30 June 3, 2013 

Community Development 
Community Development 

Site Plan (Commercial) 
Zoning/Flood determination letter 

N/A 
$25 

$0.02 sf gross floor area; $50 minimum 
$25 

Community Development 
Community Development 

Board of Adjustment Fees: 
Appeal $150 $150 

Community Development Conditional Use Permit/Amended Conditional Use Permit $150 $150 
Community Development Conditional Use Permit Renewal $25 $25 
Community Development Variance $150 $150 
Community Development 
Community Development 

Literature and Materials 
Unified Development Ordinance (UDO) $15.00 $15.00 

Community Development Amendments to UDO (Quarterly) $12.00 $12.00 
Community Development Land Use Plan $20.00 $20.00 
Community Development Official Zoning Map (Copy) $7.50 $7.50 
Community Development Planning Board Agenda (Yearly) $7.50 $7.50 
Community Development Planning Board Minutes (Yearly) $35.00 $35.00 
Community Development Board of Adjustment Agenda (Yearly) $7.50 $7.50 
Community Development Board of Adjustment Minutes (Yearly) $25.00 $25.00 
Community Development Planning Board 
Community Development Sketch Plans:  Community Development Major Subdivision (Inc PUD, RMF) $100 per lot $100 per lot 
Community Development Amended Sketch Plan, Prelim Plat, Final Plat $250 $250 
Community Development Rezoning $150 + $5/ac $150 + $5/acre 
Community Development Text Amendment to UDO $150 $150 
Community Development Amend Land Use Plan $150 $150 
Community Development Special Use Permit (SUP) or Amended SUP $150 $150 
Community Development Continuance Request $100 $100 
Community Development 
Community Development Public Copies - 1 sided $0.10 $ 0.10 
Community Development Public Copies - 2 sided $0.15 $ 0.15 
Community Development Public Copies color up the 8.5" X 14" $0.25 $ 0.25 
Community Development Notary Fees  Community Development Official County business No charge No charge 
Community Development Other $5 per docum $5 per document 
Community Development Returned check/credit card/eft fee $25  Community Development Note: Preliminary, amended preliminary, final and amended final plats will be assessed at $33 per lot 
Community Development fee if the sketch plan was approved prior to March 3, 2003. 
Elections Copies, color double sided 
Elections Copies, color single sided 
Elections Copies, standard letter or legal, per copy 
Elections Diskette 
Elections Labels, per label 
Elections Print-out, per page 
EMS Public Copies - 1 sided 
EMS Public Copies - 2 sided 

$ 0.45 
$ 0.25 
$ 0.10 
$ 10.00 
$ 0.01  Minimum $.30 
$ 0.05  Minimum $.25 
$ 0.10 
$ 0.15 

EMS Public Copies color up the 8.5" X 14" 
EMS Notary Fees 
EMS Official County business 

$ 0.25 

$ - 

per side 

no charge 
EMS Other 
EMS Returned check/credit card/eft fee 
EMS Stand-by events 
Extension Facility rental fees 
Extension Auditorium 
Extension Auditorium set up fee 
Extension Conference Room 
Extension Classrooms 
Extension Custodian 
Extension Public Copies - 1 sided 
Extension Public Copies - 2 sided 
Extension Public Copies color up the 8.5" X 14" 
Extension Notary Fees 
Extension Official County business 
Extension Other 
Extension Returned check/credit card/eft fee 
ITS CD1: GIS data CD 
ITS CD2: 2003 Color Aerial Photography 
ITS Copies, GIS Data, Laser 11 x 17 black and white 
ITS Copies, GIS Data, Laser 11 x 17 color 
ITS Copies, GIS Data, Laser 8 1/2 x 11 black and white 
ITS Copies, GIS Data, Laser 8 1/2 x 11 color 
ITS Copies, GIS Data, Laser 8 1/2 x 14 black and white 
ITS Copies, GIS Data, Laser 8 1/2 x 14 color 
ITS Copies, GIS Data, Plotter 20 x 24 up to 28 x 36 
ITS Copies, GIS Data, Plotter Greater than 28 x 36 to 36 x 42 
ITS Copies, GIS Data, Plotter Greater than 36 x 42 
ITS Copies, GIS Data, Plotter less than 20 x 24 
ITS M1: Unofficial Zoning Map 
ITS MrSid Compressed Digital Orthophotos, 1995, black & white 
ITS Street Naming/Name Changing (payable to U.S. Sign Co.) 

$ 5.00  per document 
$ 25.00 
$ 50.00  hour 

$     500.00  per day 
$     100.00  per event 
$     100.00  per day/per room 
$ 50.00  per day/per room 
$ 20.00  per hour - nights/weekends/holidays 
$ 0.10 
$ 0.15 
$ 0.25  per side 

$ - 
$ 5.00  per document 
$ 25.00 
$ 50.00 
$     100.00 
$ 1.00 
$ 2.00 
$ 0.50 
$ 1.00 
$ 0.75 
$ 1.50 
$ 5.00 
$ 8.00 
$ 10.00 
$ 3.00 
$ 10.00 
$ 50.00 
$ 75.00  plus variable (Exception: Subdivisions created prior to 4/2/89 & sign never installed)

8-6.2 

51



31 June 3, 2013 

Library Books, Fines for Overdues $ 0.10  per day 
Library Copies, standard letter or legal,per copy $ 0.10 
Library Fax - Incoming $ 1.00 
Library Fax - Outgoing $ 2.50  plus $1.00 each additional page 
MCW Tap-on Fee None 
Mainland Water 3" Riser Actual cost + 20% 
Mainland Water 6" Riser Actual cost + 20% 
Mainland Water Backhoe per hour $ 75.00 
Mainland Water Bacteriological tests $ 50.00 
Mainland Water Check Valve Actual cost + 20% 
Mainland Water Chloride tests $ 15.00 
Mainland Water Ditch Witch per hour $ 75.00 
Mainland Water ERT for Radio Read meter Actual cost + 20% 
Mainland Water Excavator per hour $ 75.00 
Mainland Water Fire hydrant meter $  1,000.00 
Mainland Water Fire hydrant meter setup fee $ 50.00 
Mainland Water High-risk deposit (owner or renter) $    200.00  or three months' billing of previous usage, whichever is greater 
Mainland Water Impact Fees 1 inch $5,500.00 
Mainland Water Impact Fees 2 inch $6,000.00 
Mainland Water Impact Fees 3 inch $6,500.00 
Mainland Water Impact Fees 3/4 inch $  5,000.00 
Mainland Water Impact Fees 4 inch $7,000.00 
Mainland Water Impact Fees 6 inch $7,500.00 
Mainland Water Impact Fees 6 inch Fire Service $6,000.00 
Mainland Water Impact Fees for Centers of Worship $3,000.00 
Mainland Water Labor per man hour $ 35.00 
Mainland Water Lid only Actual cost + 20% 
Mainland Water Lock Actual cost + 20% 
Mainland Water Meter Actual cost + 20% 
Mainland Water Meter accessibility charge $ 35.00 
Mainland Water Meter Box Actual cost + 20% 
Mainland Water Meter tampering fee $ 75.00 
Mainland Water Meter testing fee $ 50.00  If meter accurate 
Mainland Water Meter testing fee No Charge  If more than 2.5% inaccurate 
Mainland Water Open/reopen/transfer  account $ 25.00 
Mainland Water Pipe pressure/leakage retest $     150.00 
Mainland Water Pipe pressure/leakage test $     100.00 
Mainland Water Reconnection fee (after cutoff for nonpayment) $ 50.00  8AM - 5PM 
Mainland Water Renter deposit $     150.00 
Mainland Water Reread meter - our reading correct $ 25.00 
Mainland Water Reread meter - our reading incorrect No Charge 
Mainland Water Retro Actual cost + 20% 
Mainland Water Returned check fee $ 25.00 
Mainland Water Road Bore Actual cost + 20% 
Mainland Water Special request meter reading $ 25.00 
Mainland Water Turn on/off fee, per occurrence $ 25.00  Normal working hours 
Mainland Water Turn on/off fee, per occurrence $ 50.00  After normal working hours 
Mainland Water Union half with nut Actual cost + 20% 
Mainland Water Water Charge all over 20,000 gallons, commercial $ 8.50  per 1000 gal./effective 7/1/2011 
Mainland Water Water Charge all over 20,000 gallons, residential $ 8.50  per 1000 gal./effective 9/1/2007 
Mainland Water Water Charge Commercial base 0-2000 gallons $ 20.00  month 
Mainland Water Water Charge Fire Service (sprinkler systems) Same as commercial 
Mainland Water Water Charge Local Government/Board of Education Same as commercial 
Mainland Water Water Charge Residential base 0-2000 gallons $ 20.00  month 
Mainland Water Water Charge up to 10,000 gallons, commercial $ 5.50  per 1000 gal./effective 9/1/2007 
Mainland Water Water Charge up to 10,000 gallons, residential $ 5.50  per 1000 gal./effective 9/1/2007 
Mainland Water Water Charge up to 15,000 gallons, commercial $ 6.50  per 1000 gal./effective 9/1/2007 
Mainland Water Water Charge up to 15,000 gallons, residential $ 6.50  per 1000 gal./effective 9/1/2007 
Mainland Water Water Charge up to 20,000 gallons, commercial $ 7.50  per 1000 gal./effective 7/1/2011 
Mainland Water Water Charge up to 20,000 gallons, residential $ 7.50  per 1000 gal./effective 9/1/2007 
Mainland Water Water Charge up to 5000 gallons, commercial $ 4.50  per 1000 gal./effective 9/1/2007 
Mainland Water Water Charge up to 5000 gallons, residential $ 4.50  per 1000 gal./effective 9/1/2007 
Mainland Water Yoke Actual cost + 20% 
Mainland Water Yoke valve with meter nut Actual cost + 20% 
NRW Damaged parts (not normal wear and tear) Actual cost + 20% 
NRW Equipment accessibility charge $ 35.00 
NRW Equipment tampering fee $ 75.00 
NRW High-risk deposit (owner or renter) $     200.00 
NRW Labor per man hour $ 35.00 
NRW Open/reopen/transfer  account $ 25.00 
NRW Reconnection fee (after cutoff for non-payment) $ 50.00  8AM - 5PM 
NRW Renter deposit $     150.00 
NRW Returned check fee $ 25.00 
NRW Sewer Charges, per commercial unit $ 40.00  minimum/200% of water 
NRW Sewer Charges, per residential dwelling unit, per month $ 26.00 
NRW Turn on/off fee, per occurrence $ 25.00  Normal working hours 
NRW Turn on/off fee, per occurrence $ 50.00  After normal working hours 8-6.3 

52



32 June 3, 2013 

NTW                               Tap-on Fee 
Planning/Inspections/Co Copies, standard letter or legal, per copy 
Planning/Inspections/Co Copies, standard letter or legal, per copy 
Parks & Rec     Knotts Island 
Parks & Rec           Maple Park 
Parks & Rec     Maple Skate Park 
Parks & Rec           Sound Park 
Parks & Rec     Veteran's Memorial Park 
Parks & Rec     Walnut Island Park 
Parks & Rec        Adult Softball (men and women) 
Parks & Rec     Youth Cheerleading 
Parks & Rec     Youth Flag Football 
Parks & Rec        Youth Soccer (Fall and Spring) 
Parks & Rec     Youth Tackle Football 
Parks & Rec        Youth T-Ball/Baseball/Softball 
Parks & Rec     Youth/Junior Basketball 
Parks & Rec        Community Leagues 

$     500.00 
$ 0.10  1 sided 
$ 0.15  2 sided 
$     200.00  per day 
$     300.00  per day 
$     200.00  per day 
$     500.00  per day 
$     200.00  per day 
$     200.00  per day 
$     200.00  per team 
$ 20.00  per child - Maximum of $40.00 per family 
$ 20.00  per child - Maximum of $40.00 per family 
$ 20.00  per child - Maximum of $40.00 per family 
$ 25.00  per child - No Maximum Fee 
$ 25.00  per child - $35.00 (2 children) Maximum of $50.00 for a family of 3 or more 
$ 20.00  per child - Maximum of $40.00 per family 

Parks & Rec Concessions Cost + 100% to 300% 
Parks & Rec    Field Fees - Soccer, Baseball/Softball, Tennis Courts 
Parks & Rec    Field Fees - Soccer, Baseball/Softball, Tennis Courts 
Parks & Rec        Field Set-up Fees - Baseball/Softball 
Parks & Rec Field Set-up Fees - Soccer 
Parks & Rec Park Picnic Shelter 
Parks & Rec Parks 
Parks & Rec Staff for Events (if required) - Park Attendant  
Parks & Rec Staff for Events (if required) - Park Superintendent 
Parks & Rec Staff for Events (if required) - Recreation Director 
Parks & Rec Staff for Events (if required) - Recreation Specialist 

$ 25.00  1/2 day - does not include staff, security or clean-up charges 
$ 50.00  daily - does not include staff, security or clean-up charges 
$ 20.00  per field - does not include staff, security or clean-up charges 
$ 25.00  per field - does not include staff, security or clean-up charges 
$ 25.00  per 1/2 day/$50 daily 

$ 10.00  per hour/per attendant 
$ 15.00  per hour 
$ 25.00  per hour 
$ 15.00  per hour 

Ocean Sands Sewer rates equal 150% water rate effective 7/1/2013 
Solid Waste Tipping Fees per ton for all solid waste that originates outside the County 
Solid Waste Tipping Fees per ton for mixed solid waste MSW 
Register of Deeds Birth or Death Amendments (preparation) 
Register of Deeds Birth or Death Amendments, NC Vital Records 
Register of Deeds Birth or Death Legitimations County 
Register of Deeds Birth or Death Legitimations State (via check) 
Register of Deeds Birth or Death Record, Certified Copy 
Register of Deeds Birth, Delayed Birth Applications 
Register of Deeds Copies, Certified 1st page 
Register of Deeds Copies, Uncertified 
Register of Deeds Copies, Uncertified Plats (11"x17")-per page VIA Mail 
Register of Deeds Copies, Uncertified Plats (18"x24")-per page  
Register of Deeds Copies, Uncertified Plats (18"x24")-per page VIA Mail 
Register of Deeds Copies, Uncertified VIA Mail 
Register of Deeds Deeds of Trust and Mortgages 1st page 
Register of Deeds Deeds of Trust and Mortgages 2nd page and all additional pages 
Register of Deeds Deeds of Trust and Mortgages Additional (multi-instrument) 
Register of Deeds Deeds of Trust and Mortgages Probate 

$ 81.00  per ton 
$ 71.00  per ton 
$ 10.00 
$ 15.00  payable to N.C. Vital Records Section 
$ 10.00 
$ 10.00 
$ 10.00 
$ 20.00 
$ 5.00  plus $2.00 each additional page 
$ 0.25 
$ 2.00 
$ 2.00 
$ 3.00 
$ 1.00 
$ 28.00 
$ 5.00 
$ 10.00 
$ 2.00 

Register of Deeds Deeds of Trust and Mortgages Satisfaction/Cancellation Free 
Register of Deeds Highway Maps 1st page 
Register of Deeds Highway Maps Additional Page(s) 
Register of Deeds Highway Maps Certified Copy (per 1st page) 
Register of Deeds Instrument, General 1st page 
Register of Deeds Instrument, General 2nd page and all additional pages 
Register of Deeds Instrument, General Additional ( multi-instrument) 
Register of Deeds Instrument, General Probate 
Register of Deeds Marriage License 
Register of Deeds Marriage License Certified Copy 
Register of Deeds Marriage License Corrections 
Register of Deeds Notary Oath 
Register of Deeds Notary Verification of Commission 
Register of Deeds Plats 1st page (GS 161-10) 
Register of Deeds Plats Additional Page(s) 
Register of Deeds Plats Certified Copy (per 1st page) 
Register of Deeds Uniform Commercial Code Fixture Filing Only 1-2 pages 
Register of Deeds Uniform Commercial Code Fixture Filing Only 3-10 pages 
Register of Deeds Uniform Commercial Code Fixture Filing Only over 10 pages 
Rural Center Facility rental fees 
Rural Center Complete facility rental fee 
Rural Center Picnic Shelter- half day rental 
Rural Center Picnic Shelter- full day rental 

$ 21.00 
$ 5.00 
$ 5.00 
$ 12.00 
$ 3.00 
$ 10.00 
$ 2.00 
$ 60.00 
$ 10.00 
$ 10.00 
$ 10.00 
$ 3.00 
$ 21.00 
$ 21.00 
$ 5.00 
$ 38.00 
$ 45.00 
$ 45.00  plus $2.00 each additional page over 10 

$     500.00  per day. 
$ 25.00  per day/per room (up to 4 hours) 
$ 50.00  per day/per room (up to 8 hours) 

The promoter will have exclusive rights to the grounds. 

Rural Center Minimum fee $25.00 
Rural Center Indoor Arena: 
Rural Center 
Rural Center Hourly rental of indoor arena 
Rural Center Outdoor Arena: 
Rural Center 
Rural Center Hourly rental of outdoor arena 

$     175.00  per weekend day 
$     125.00  per week day 
$ 25.00  per hour 
$     125.00  per weekend day 
$     100.00  per week day 
$ 25.00  per hour 8-6.4 

53



33 June 3, 2013 

Rural Center Overnight, no event $ 35.00  per nights 
Rural Center With event $ 15.00  day stall 
Rural Center $ 25.00  2 day show 
Rural Center $ 30.00  3 day show 
Rural Center Shavings must be used with any stall rental. No one can stall a horse without shavings. 
Rural Center Shavings $ 6.75  per bag 
Rural Center RV/Camper Hook-up $ 15.00  per night 
Rural Center (not yet available) $ 10.00  per horse for portable turn-out (portable stall or paddock must be approved 
Rural Center by Park attendant) 
Rural Center Vendor Hook-up $ 25.00  per day 
Rural Center Technology fee $ 50.00  Includes wifi, phone, copier, fax access 
Rural Center Notary Fees 
Rural Center Official County business No charge 
Rural Center Other $5 per document 
Rural Center Returned check/credit card/eft fee $25 
Soil Conservation Soil  surveys/publications Free 
S Outer Banks Water 3" Riser Actual cost + 20% 
S Outer Banks Water 6" Riser Actual cost + 20% 
S Outer Banks Water Backhoe per hour VOH $ 75.00 
S Outer Banks Water Backhoe per hour OS ABC $ 75.00 
S Outer Banks Water Backhoe per hour OS D-Y $ 75.00 
S Outer Banks Water Bacteriological tests $ 50.00 
S Outer Banks Water Check Valve Actual cost + 20% 
S Outer Banks Water Chloride tests $ 15.00 
S Outer Banks Water Ditch Witch per hour VOH $ 75.00 
S Outer Banks Water Ditch Witch per hour OS ABC $ 75.00 
S Outer Banks Water Ditch Witch per hour OS D-Y $ 75.00 
S Outer Banks Water ERT for Radio Read meter Actual cost + 20% 
S Outer Banks Water Fire hydrant meter VOH $  1,000.00 
S Outer Banks Water Fire hydrant meter OS ABC $  1,000.00 
S Outer Banks Water Fire hydrant meter OS D-Y $  1,000.00 
S Outer Banks Water Fire hydrant meter setup fee VOH $ 50.00 
S Outer Banks Water Fire hydrant meter setup fee OS ABC $ 50.00 
S Outer Banks Water Fire hydrant meter setup fee OS D-Y $ 50.00 
S Outer Banks Water High risk deposit (owner or renter) VOH $    200.00  or three months' billing of previous usage, whichever is greater 
S Outer Banks Water High risk deposit (owner or renter) OS ABC $    200.00  or three months' billing of previous usage, whichever is greater 
S Outer Banks Water High risk deposit (owner or renter) OS D-Y $    200.00  or three months' billing of previous usage, whichever is greater 
S Outer Banks Water Impact Fee 1 inch for Centers of Worship OS ABC $  3,000.00 
S Outer Banks Water Impact Fee 1" Meter OS ABC $  6,500.00 
S Outer Banks Water Impact Fee 2 inch OS ABC $  7,000.00 
S Outer Banks Water Impact Fee 3 inch OS ABC $  7,500.00 
S Outer Banks Water Impact Fee 3/4" Meter OS ABC $  6,000.00 
S Outer Banks Water Impact Fee 4 inch OS ABC $  8,000.00 
S Outer Banks Water Impact Fee 6 inch OS ABC $  8,500.00 
S Outer Banks Water Impact Fee 6 inch Fire Services OS ABC $  6,000.00 
S Outer Banks Water Impact Fee standard 3/4" meter, commercial VOH $  1,000.00 
S Outer Banks Water Impact Fee standard 3/4" meter, hotels/motels per two rooms VOH $  1,000.00 
S Outer Banks Water Impact Fee standard 3/4" meter, laundry VOH $  1,000.00  per 3 machines 
S Outer Banks Water Impact Fee standard 3/4" meter, multifamily VOH $  1,000.00  (condos, cottage courts, apartments) Each habitable unit 
S Outer Banks Water Impact Fee standard 3/4" meter, restaurants VOH $  1,000.00  per 16 seats or fraction thereof 
S Outer Banks Water Impact Fee standard 3/4" meter, sewer VOH $     700.00 
S Outer Banks Water Impact Fee standard 3/4" meter, single family residential VOH $  1,000.00 
S Outer Banks Water Labor per man hour VOH $ 35.00 
S Outer Banks Water Labor per man hour OS ABC $ 35.00 
S Outer Banks Water Labor per man hour OS D-Y $ 35.00 
S Outer Banks Water Lid only Actual cost + 20% 
S Outer Banks Water Lock Actual cost + 20% 
S Outer Banks Water Meter Actual cost + 20% 
S Outer Banks Water Meter accessibility charge VOH $ 35.00 
S Outer Banks Water Meter accessibility charge OS ABC $ 35.00 
S Outer Banks Water Meter accessibility charge OS D-Y $ 35.00 
S Outer Banks Water Meter Box Actual cost + 20% 
S Outer Banks Water Meter tampering fee VOH $ 75.00 
S Outer Banks Water Meter tampering fee OS ABC $ 75.00 
S Outer Banks Water Meter tampering fee OS D-Y $ 75.00 
S Outer Banks Water Meter testing fee VOH $ 50.00  If meter accurate 
S Outer Banks Water Meter testing fee OS ABC $ 50.00  If meter accurate 
S Outer Banks Water Meter testing fee OS D-Y $ 50.00  If meter accurate 
S Outer Banks Water Meter testing fee VOH No Charge  If more than 2.5% inaccurate 
S Outer Banks Water Meter testing fee OS ABC No Charge  If more than 2.5% inaccurate 
S Outer Banks Water Meter testing fee OS D-Y No Charge  If more than 2.5% inaccurate 
S Outer Banks Water Open/reopen/transfer  account VOH $ 25.00 
S Outer Banks Water Open/reopen/transfer  account OS ABC $ 25.00 
S Outer Banks Water Open/reopen/transfer  account OS D-Y $ 25.00 
S Outer Banks Water Pipe pressure/leakage retest VOH $     150.00 

Rural Center Park Attendant 
Rural Center Stall Rental: 

$ 20.00  per hour - nights/weekends/holidays 

8-6.5 

54



34 June 3, 2013 

S Outer Banks Water Pipe pressure/leakage retest OS ABC $     150.00 
S Outer Banks Water Pipe pressure/leakage test VOH $     100.00 
S Outer Banks Water Pipe pressure/leakage test OS ABC $     100.00 
S Outer Banks Water Pipe pressure/leakage test OS D-Y $     100.00 
S Outer Banks Water Reconnection fee (after cutoff for nonpayment) VOH $ 50.00 8AM - 5PM 
S Outer Banks Water Reconnection fee (after cutoff for nonpayment) OS ABC $ 50.00 8AM - 5PM 
S Outer Banks Water Reconnection fee (after cutoff for nonpayment) OS D-Y $ 50.00 8AM - 5PM 
S Outer Banks Water Renter deposit VOH $     150.00 
S Outer Banks Water Renter deposit OS ABC $     150.00 
S Outer Banks Water Renter deposit OS D-Y $     150.00 
S Outer Banks Water Reread meter - our reading correct VOH $ 25.00 
S Outer Banks Water Reread meter - our reading correct OS ABC $ 25.00 
S Outer Banks Water Reread meter - our reading correct OS D-Y $ 25.00 
S Outer Banks Water Reread meter - our reading incorrect VOH No Charge 
S Outer Banks Water Reread meter - our reading incorrect OS ABC No Charge 
S Outer Banks Water Reread meter - our reading incorrect OS D-Y No Charge  S Outer Banks Water Retro Actual cost + 20% 

S Outer Banks Water      Returned check fee VOH $ 
S Outer Banks Water      Returned check fee OS ABC     $ 
S Outer Banks Water      Returned check fee OS D-Y $ 

25.00 
25.00 
25.00 

S Outer Banks Water      Road Bore $10 per foot 
S Outer Banks Water      Sewer Charges: Equal to 53% of total water charge OS D-Y $ 
S Outer Banks Water      Special request meter reading VOH $ 
S Outer Banks Water      Special request meter reading OS ABC     $ 
S Outer Banks Water      Special request meter reading OS D-Y $ 

7.95  per month minimum base rate 
25.00 
25.00 
25.00 

S Outer Banks Water      Tap-on Fee: $450.00 plus Impact Fee: 2000.00 OS D-Y $  2,450.00 
S Outer Banks Water      Turn on/off fee, per occurrence VOH $ 
S Outer Banks Water      Turn on/off fee, per occurrence OS ABC     $ 
S Outer Banks Water      Turn on/off fee, per occurrence OS D-Y $ 
S Outer Banks Water      Turn on/off fee, per occurrence VOH

$ 
S Outer Banks Water      Turn on/off fee, per occurrence OS ABC     $ 
S Outer Banks Water      Turn on/off fee, per occurrence OS D-Y

$ 

25.00  Normal working hours 
25.00  Normal working hours 
25.00  Normal working hours 
50.00  After normal working hours 
50.00  After normal working hours 
50.00  After normal working hours 

S Outer Banks Water      Union half with nut Actual cost + 20% 
S Outer Banks Water      Water Charge Base Rate    VOH           $ 
S Outer Banks Water      Water Charge Base Rate        OS ABC     $ 
S Outer Banks Water      Water Charge Base Rate       OS D-Y   $ 
S Outer Banks Water      Water Charge Consumption over 20,000 gallons    VOH    $ 
S Outer Banks Water      Water Charge Consumption over 20,000 gallons    OS ABC     $ 
S Outer Banks Water      Water Charge Consumption over 20,000 gallons    OS D-Y   $ 
S Outer Banks Water      Water Charge Consumption up to 10,000 gallons    VOH    $ 
S Outer Banks Water      Water Charge Consumption up to 10,000 gallons   OS ABC     $ 
S Outer Banks Water      Water Charge Consumption up to 10,000 gallons    OS D-Y   $ 
S Outer Banks Water      Water Charge Consumption up to 15,000 gallons    VOH    $ 
S Outer Banks Water      Water Charge Consumption up to 15,000 gallons   OS ABC     $ 
S Outer Banks Water      Water Charge Consumption up to 15,000 gallons    OS D-Y   $ 
S Outer Banks Water      Water Charge Consumption up to 2,500 gallons       VOH    $ 
S Outer Banks Water      Water Charge Consumption up to 2,500 gallons      OS ABC     $ 
S Outer Banks Water      Water Charge Consumption up to 2,500 gallons      OS D-Y   $ 
S Outer Banks Water      Water Charge Consumption up to 20,000 gallons    VOH    $ 
S Outer Banks Water      Water Charge Consumption up to 20,000 gallons   OS ABC     $ 
S Outer Banks Water      Water Charge Consumption up to 20,000 gallons    OS D-Y   $ 
S Outer Banks Water      Water Charge Consumption up to 5,000 gallons       VOH    $ 
S Outer Banks Water      Water Charge Consumption up to 5,000 gallons      OS ABC     $ 
S Outer Banks Water      Water Charge Consumption up to 5,000 gallons       OS D-Y      $ 

15.00  month 
15.00  month 
15.00  month 

8.50  per 1000 gal. 
8.50  per 1000 gal. 
8.50  per 1000 gal. 
5.50  per 1000 gal. 
5.50  per 1000 gal. 
5.50  per 1000 gal. 
6.50  per 1000 gal. 
6.50  per 1000 gal. 
6.50  per 1000 gal. 
3.50  per 1000 gal. 
3.50  per 1000 gal. 
3.50  per 1000 gal. 
7.50  per 1000 gal. 
7.50  per 1000 gal. 
7.50  per 1000 gal. 
4.50  per 1000 gal. 
4.50  per 1000 gal. 
4.50  per 1000 gal. 

S Outer Banks Water      Yoke Actual cost + 20% 
S Outer Banks Water      Yoke valve with meter nut Actual cost + 20% 
S Outer Banks Water      Pipe pressure/leakage retest OS D-Y 
Sr. Center Deposit, Rental of Senior Center Space (Refundable) 
Sr. Center Powells Point Bldg- Deposit 
Sr. Center Powells Point Bldg- Rent 
Sr. Center Kitchen not used 
Sr. Center Kitchen use 
Sr. Center Public Copies - 1 sided 
Sr. Center Public Copies - 2 sided 
Sr. Center Public Copies color up the 8.5" X 14" 
Sr. Center Notary Fees 
Sr. Center Official County business 
Sr. Center Other 
Sr. Center Returned check/credit card/eft fee 

$     150.00 
$    100.00 
$     100.00  per event 
$     100.00  per event 
$     100.00 
$     125.00 
$ 0.10 
$ 0.15 
$ 0.25 

$ - 
$ 5.00  per document 
$ 25.00 

Tourism Retail Sales Cost + 100% to 400% 
Other Notary Fees Free Official County Business 
Other Notary Fees $5.00  Other than County Business 
Other Returned Check Fee $25.00 

NOTES: 8-6.6 

55



35 June 3, 2013 

Moyock Commons Sewer Charges are equal to four (4) times the water charge for the billing period. Minimum sewer charge is $100.00 per month. 
Moyock Commons There are no additional fees associated with the Moyock Commons Sewer District; however, as all District customers are connected to the Currituck County 

Mainland Water System, all charges and fees for water service will apply 
Mainland Water Water Charge: Commercial master meter accts charged at above rates per unit served. Hotels and motels: Four rooms equal one commercial master 

meter billing unit. 
Mainland Water Impact Fees: All installation costs for labor, materials and equipment shall be paid by the owner/developer/purchaser. 
Mainland Water Subdivisions with active sketch plan approval prior to July 1, 2007 included on attached list will be assessed impact fees at the rate in effect on June 30, 2007 until June 

56



36 June 3, 2013 

Newtown Road Sewer     Commercial sewer: 200% of water charge, $40.00 minimum. 
Inspections Movable agricultural buildings occupied for farm purposes shall be exempt from fees prescribed above. 
Inspections *Alterations include work within existing structures and

upgrading existing service do not include additions,
new construction, providing power to structures not 
previously having power, or new service to existing 
buildings. 

Planning Preliminary, amended preliminary, final, and 
amended final plats will be assessed a $33.00 per lot
fee if the sketch plan was approved prior to March 3, 
2003. 

S Outer Banks Water     VOH Total water charge based on rate block for total consumption. Ex: If 25,000 gallons used, cost is $8.50/1000 for all gallons used. 
S Outer Banks Water     OS ABC Total water charge based on rate block 
for total consumption. Ex: If 25,000 gallons used, cost is $8.50/1000 for all 
gallons used. S Outer Banks Water     OS D-Y Total water charge based 
on rate block for total consumption. Ex: If 25,000 gallons used, cost is 
$8.50/1000 for all gallons used. 
S Outer Banks Water     VOH Commercial master meter accounts charged at 

the above rates per unit served. Hotels and motels: 
Four rooms equal one commercial master meter 
billing unit. 

S Outer Banks Water     OS ABC Commercial master meter accounts charged at 
the above rates per unit served. Hotels and motels: 
Four rooms equal one commercial master meter billing 
unit. 

S Outer Banks Water     OS D-Y Commercial master meter accounts charged at the 
above rates per unit served. Hotels and motels: Four 
rooms equal one commercial master meter billing unit. 

57



37 June 3, 2013 

B) Public Hearing and Action: PB 10-02 Beach Jeeps of Corolla: Request to
amend a Use Permit to reduce the permitted number of tour vehicles. The
property is located at 111 Austin Road, Unit H, Tax Map 115B, Parcel 2P2B,
Poplar Branch Beach Township.

Chairman O’Neal noted that Bob White was on his way and requested to delay the public 
hearing until his arrival. 
Commissioner Aydlett moved to continue item until the end of the meeting.  Commissioner 
Petrey seconded the motion.  Motion carried unanimously. 

Mr. White arrived later in the meeting and sworn testimony was given prior to making 
comments. 

Ben Woody, Planning and Community Development Director, explained the request. 

The Planning Board heard case PB13-04 Bob’s Wild Horse Tours, LLC at the April 9th meeting.  A condition 
of approval required the applicant to amend special use permit PB10-02 to reduce the number of 
permitted tour vehicles.  The applicant’s intent is to voluntarily reduce the number of tour vehicles in order 
to stay consistent with the Outdoor Tour Operator License requirement to reduce the overall number of tour 
vehicles operating in the 4x4 area of Corolla. 

The following are the conditions of PB10-02 Beach Jeeps Use Permit for Outdoor Tour Operator.  The 
strike-through and bold, underlined text indicate the proposed changes. 

1. Tour vehicles shall be labeled with decals or paint markings that clearly display the company
name.  Label font size shall be a minimum of four  three inches. 

2. All tours must be guided from Memorial Day to Labor Day. Tag-a-long tours are permitted as
long as the lead vehicle is operated by an employee of the tour company and subsequent 
vehicles are under the employee’s supervision. No tour shall be comprised of more than five (5) 
outdoor tour vehicles including the outdoor tour vehicle operated by the guide.   

3. Tours shall comply with Chapter 3: Article II. Wild Horses, Chapter 10: Article II. Beaches and all
other applicable provisions of the Currituck County Code of Ordinances.  Tours shall also operate 
in accordance with all State and Federal laws. 

4. There shall be one parking space required for every vehicle seating 1-5 persons, two parking
spaces required for every vehicle seating 6-10 persons etc., and one parking space required for 
every two employees.  If any additional activities or uses occur on-site, additional parking may 
be required per the Unified Development Ordinance.  Currently there is adequate parking 
available at the proposed location. 

Use Parking Requirement Quantity Parking Total 

Horse Tour Rentals 

Tour vehicle seating 1-5 
persons = 1 space per 

vehicle 10 Jeeps 10 
Employees (largest shift) 1 space/2 employees 4 employees 2 

Total Required: 12 
This permit authorizes the use of eight (8) tour vehicles and a maximum capacity of 50 
persons through December 31, 2013.  Effective January 1, 2014, this permit authorizes the use 

58



38 June 3, 2013 

of three (3) tour vehicles. 
5. Vehicles held in reserve in the event of inclement weather or breakdowns may be used as long as

the parking requirements and all other conditions of this permit are met.  Reserve vehicles must be 
stored at an approved location. 

6. This special use permit shall be reviewed administratively on an annual basis and a report shall
be filed with the Currituck County Board of Commissioners detailing the nature of any complaints 
received by the Planning Department.  At the discretion of the Code Enforcement Officer or 
Board of Commissioners, the special use permit shall be subject to revocation or modification by 
the permit issuing authority following a public hearing. 

7. The Board of Commissioners may establish a maximum number of vehicles as part of the special
use permit approval process. 

The Planning Board recommended unanimous approval at their May 14, 2013 meeting. 

PLANNING BOARD DISCUSSION (5-14-13) 
Mr. White stated he would be glad to answer any questions the board may have. 

Mr. Craddock stated on behalf of the Planning Board he would like to thank Mr. White for submitting this 
application so promptly after the last Planning Board meeting.  

Mr. Cooper stated that submitting this application the total number of tour vehicles will remain the same. 

Mr. White stated this is correct. 

Ms. Wilson asked Mr. White to explain how many tour vehicles, capacity of each tour vehicle, and the 
location of each.  

Mr. White provided this information. 

PLANNING BOARD ACTION 
Mr. Craddock moved to approve PB 10-02 with staff recommendations included in the case analysis. Mr. 
Cooper seconded the motion.  Motion carried unanimously. 

Chairman O’Neal opened the Public Hearing.  There being no comments, he closed the Public 
Hearing.   

Commissioner Petrey moved to approve the request.  Commissioner Aydlett seconded the 
motion.  Motion carried unanimously.   

C) Public Hearing and Action: PB 13-05 Pat’s Way: Request zoning an
abandoned Right-of-Way (Pat's Way) to General Business (GB), located in
Barco, Tax Map 60, Parcel 55D, Crawford Township.

This item was continued.  

New Business 

A) Board Appointments
1. Appointments to Fire-EMS Board (FEAB)

59



39 June 3, 2013 

George Bergamini and Mitch Copeland were recommended for reappointment by the volunteer 
fire departments.  Commissioner McCord nominated Jeff Shell.   
Commissioner Aydlett moved to approve the appointments.  Commissioner Gilbert seconded the 
motion.  Motion carried unanimously. 

2. Appointments to Whalehead Trust Board of Directors

Commissioner Aydlett nominated Cliff Scott for reappointment.  Commissioner Martin 
nominated Don Cheek.  Commissioner Aydlett nominated Travis Morris for reappointment and 
Penny Leary-Smith and Joanna Brumsey for appointment.   

Commissioner Petrey moved to appoint those nominated.  Commissioner Gilbert seconded the 
motion.  Motion carried unanimously.    

B) Consent Agenda:

1. Budget Amendments
2. Approval of May 20, 2013 Minutes
3. Approval Travel Policy for ABC Board pursuant to GS 18B-700(g2) same

Travel Policy as the County
4. Pittard, Perry & Crone Inc - Audit Contract for fiscal year ending June 30,

2013 
5. CDBG Monthly Status Report
6. ITS Surplus Resolution
7. Approval of Mike Painter as regular member of the Board of

Adjustment due to Christian Conner's resignation

Commissioner Petrey moved to approve the Consent Agenda.  Commissioner Martin seconded 
the motion.  Motion carried unanimously. 

Debit Credit 

 Decrease Revenue 
or 

Increase Revenue 
or 

Account Number Account Description Increase Expense 
Decrease 
Expense 

 
10410 506000 

HEALTH INSURANCE 
EXPENSE  $          342 

10410 526000 ADVERTISING  $        342 
10415 506000 INSURANCE EXPENSE  $          171 
10415 532000 SUPPLIES  $          500 
10415 561000 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES  $        671 

60



40 June 3, 2013 

10430 506000 INSURANCE EXPENSE  $          171 
10430 545000 CONTRACT SERVICES  $        171 
10440 506000 INSURANCE EXPENSE  $          428 
10440 514500 TRAINING & EDUCATION  $          260 
10440 526000 ADVERTISING  $          200 
10440 561000 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES  $        888 
10441 511010 DATA TRANSMISSION/WAN  $       2,173 
10441 506000 INSURANCE EXPENSE  $          428 
10441 545000 CONTRACT SERVICES  $            2,601 
10450 506000 INSURANCE EXPENSE  $            86 
10450 514000 TRAVEL  $          86 
10460 506000 INSURANCE EXPENSE  $       1,276 
10460 513000 UTILITIES  $            1,276 
10461 511000 TELEPHONE & POSTAGE  $          212 
10461 506000 INSURANCE EXPENSE  $        212 
10480 557301 FLOODPLAIN MAPPING  $          10,500 
10480 508000 SUPPLEMENTAL PENSION  $          600 
10480 557300 EXCISE TAX ON DEEDS  $            30,000 
10480 590000 CAPITAL OUTLAY  $            45 
10480 506000 INSURANCE EXPENSE  $          513 
10480 554000 INSURANCE & BONDS  $            1,500 
10480 557400 CHILDRENS TRUST FUND  $          300 

10480 558100 
DOMESTIC VIOLENCE 
CENTER  $       2,000 

10320 407000 MARRIAGE LICENSE  $            2,300 
10320 410000 EXCISE TAX ON DEEDS  $          19,158 
10512 506000 INSURANCE EXPENSE  $          342 
10512 514000 TRAVEL  $        342 
10531 590000 CAPITAL OUTLAY  $            13 
10531 506000 INSURANCE  $          13 
10535 506000 INSURANCE EXPENSE  $       1,169 
10535 545000 CONTRACT SERVICES  $            1,169 
10640 506000 INSURANCE EXPENSE  $          171 
10640 513000 UTILITIES  $        171 
10650 506000 INSURANCE EXPENSE  $            86 
10650 531000 GAS  $          86 
10660 506000 INSURANCE EXPENSE  $          855 
10660 514800 FEES PAID TO OFFICIALS  $        855 
10750 516000 REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE  $          589 
10750 506000 INSURANCE EXPENSE  $        589 
10775 532000 SUPPLIES  $            11 
10775 513000 UTILITIES  $       4,000 
10775 516000 REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE  $            1,000 

61



41 June 3, 2013 

10775 506000 INSURANCE EXPENSE  $        853 
10775 516200 VEHICLE MAINTENANCE  $            2,158 
10795 503000 SALARIES - PART TIME  $            21 
10795 506000 INSURANCE EXPENSE  $          599 
10795 511000 TELEPHONE & POSTAGE  $        620 

 $            47,561  $          47,561 

        Explanation: Various Departments - Transfers for operations for the remainder of this fiscal year.  
Register of Deeds increased due to increases in revenues collected. 

Net Budget Effect: Operating Fund (10) - Increased by $21,458. 

Debit Credit 

 Decrease Revenue 
or 

Increase Revenue 
or 

Account Number Account Description Increase Expense 
Decrease 
Expense 

12543 532003 SUPPLIES - MOYOCK 5,136 

12543 536103 
PERSONAL PROTECT EQUIP-
MOYOCK 7,865 

12543 544003 VOLUNTEER ASSISTANCE-MOYOCK 9,901 
12543 553003 DUES & SUBSCRIPTIONS - MOYOCK 703 
12543 554003 INSURANCE - MOYOCK 9,667 
12543 511003 TELEPHONE & POSTAGE - MOYOCK  $            1,600 
12543 514003 TRAVEL/TRAINING - MOYOCK  $          10,000 
12543 590003 CAPITAL OUTLAY  $          21,672 

12546 536006 UNIFORMS - COROLLA 1,332 
12546 511006 TELEPHONE & POSTAGE - COROLLA  $            1,332 

12548 531015 GAS, OIL, ETC - KNOTTS ISLAND 4,444 
12548 532015 SUPPLIES - KNOTTS ISLAND 1,754 
12548 553015 DUES & SUBSCRIPTIONS-KNOTTS IS 3,870 

12548 511015 
TELEPHONE & POSTAGE - KNOTTS 
IS  $            2,700 

12438 513015 UTILITIES  $            7,368 

 $            44,672  $          44,672 

        Explanation: Moyock VFD (12543); Corolla VFD (12546); Knotts Island VFD (12548) - Transfers 

62



42 June 3, 2013 

for operations for the remainder of this fiscal year. 

Net Budget Effect: Fire Services Fund (12) - No change. 

A) Commissioner’s Report

Commissioner McCord  - No report 

Commissioner Griggs – Reported that the Commissioners had been contacting State legislative 
representatives regarding bills with a potential for negative impact on the County.  He 
commended the Board for promoting the best interests of the County.     

Commissioner Martin – No report 

Commissioner Aydlett stated he was also proud of the Board and what they had accomplished.  
He requested a standardized budget request form for use by the volunteer fire departments next 
year in order to streamline review by the Fire and EMS Advisory Board.    

Commissioner Petrey complimented the County Manager and Finance Director on a job well 
done regarding the budget preparation.  He also mentioned the ongoing study regarding the 
volunteer fire departments. 

Commissioner Gilbert also complimented the County Manager and Finance Director.  She 
announced the Moyock Small Area Plan public meeting scheduled for June 10, Moyock 
Methodist Church, 7:00 pm.   

Chairman O’Neal spoke of the many contacts with representatives in Raleigh and gaining their 
commitment to slow down bills.  He also reported that Sentara’s presentation to Albemarle 
Hospital was very good.  He had not seen the others as yet.    

B) County Manager’s Report

County Manager Scanlon thanked all those who had voted their support online for the PetSafe 
Grant. 

Recess Regular Meeting 

Commissioner Aydlett moved to recess the Board of Commissioners meeting and convene as 
the Tourism Development Authority.  Commissioner Gilbert seconded the motion.  Motion 
carried unanimously.   

Special Meeting 
Tourism Development  Authority 

63



43 June 3, 2013 

Public Hearing and Possible Action on the FY 2014 Tourism Development Authority Budget 

County Manager Dan Scanlon had nothing further to add since his presentation of the FY 2013-
2014 Budget for the Tourism Development Authority at the May 20 meeting.   

Chairman O’Neal opened the Public Hearing.  There being no comment, he closed the Public 
Hearing. 

Commissioner Aydlett moved to adopt the Tourism Development Authority Budget as 
presented.  Commissioner Gilbert seconded the motion.  Motion carried unanimously. 

64



44 June 3, 2013 

CURRITUCK COUNTY TOURISM DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 
BUDGET ORDINANCE 
For the Year Ending June 30, 2014 

BE IT ORDAINED by the Currituck County Tourism Development Authority, County of Currituck, North Carolina that the following estimated 
resources, appropriations, and memoranda are adopted for the fiscal year commencing July 1, 2013 and ending June 30, 2014. 

SECTION 1.  OCCUPANCY TAX - PROMOTION 

A. Estimated Resources: 

Occupancy Tax 9,900,000 

Other revenues 466,738 

Investment earnings 50,000 

Transfers from other funds 113,987 

   TOTAL ESTIMATED RESOURCES $ 10,530,725 

B. Appropriations: 

Occupancy Tax - Promotion $ 3,427,294 

Occupancy Tax - Tourist related 7,103,431 

10,530,725 

   TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS $ 10,530,725 

65



45 June 3, 2013 

The information above is presented in summary form.  Complete detailed information is on file with the Finance Director. 

     SECTION 2.  SPECIAL APPROPRIATIONS AND RESTRICTIONS 

The Budget Officer is hereby authorized to transfer appropriations within the funds as contained herein under the following conditions. 

         a. He may transfer amounts within the same department within the same fund up to Ten Thousand dollars ($10,000) providing an official
report on such transfers at a regular meeting of the Board of Commissioners on a quarterly basis.

         b. He may transfer amounts between departments within the same fund up to One Thousand dollars ($1,000) providing an official report
on such transfers at the next regular meeting of the Board of Commissioners.

c. He may appropriate fund balance to salaries and benefits in order to increase salaries of employees who have met requirements to
increase certifications required by the County providing an office report on such transfers at the next regular meeting of the Board of
Commissioners.

    d. He may make interfund loans for a period of not more than sixty days (60).

e. He may not transfer any amounts between funds or from any contingency line items within any funds.

   SECTION 29.  CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS 

The County Manager or the County Attorney are hereby authorized to execute contractual documents under the following conditions: 

        a. They may execute contracts for construction or repair projects which do not require formal competitive bid procedures.

b. They may award contracts, reject bids, re-advertise for bids, waive bid bonds or bid deposit requirements, and waive performance and
payment bond requirements for all formal bids of apparatus, supplies, materials and equipment as stated in G. S. 143-129.

         c. They may execute contracts for (1) purchases of apparatus, supplies, and materials, or equipment which are within the budgeted

66



46 June 3, 2013 

departmental appropriations; (2) leases of personal property for a duration of one year or less and within budgeted departmental 
appropriations; and (3) services which are within budgeted departmental appropriations. 

         d. They may execute grant agreements to and from public and nonprofit organizations which are within budgeted appropriations, unless a
grantor organization requires execution by the Board of Commissioners.

         e. They may execute contracts, as the lessor or lessee of real property, which are of a duration of one year or less which are within the
budgeted departmental appropriations.

SECTION 30.  MEMORANDA 

A. Officers: 
Daniel F. Scanlon II is the Budget Officer 
Mary S. Gilbert is the Clerk to the Board 
Eileen Wirth is the Deputy Clerk to the Board 
Donald Ikerd McRee is the County Attorney 
Sandra L. Hill is the County Finance Director 
Bridget T. Brinkley is the Deputy Finance Director 

B. Facsimile Signatures: 
        The use of facsimile signature machines, signature stamps, or similar devices in signing checks and drafts is hereby authorized; 

however, off-line checks and pre-audit certification requires in the minimum of one original authorizing signature.  The Finance Director 
is hereby charged with the custody of all facsimile machines, stamps, plates or other devices. 

 C
. Official Depositories: 

The Official depositories of the Tourism Development Authority are: 
   Towne Bank of Currituck, Moyock, North Carolina 
   Bank of America, North Carolina 
   Bank of Hampton Roads (dba Gateway Bank), North Carolina 
   Branch Bank and Trust, North Carolina 
   North Carolina Cash Management Trust, Charlotte, North Carolina 
   Vantage South Bank, North Carolina 
   Wells Fargo, North Carolina 

D Daily Deposits: 

67



47 June 3, 2013 

. 
Daily deposits are required by all departments when the amount of money held on hand sums to Two Hundred Fifty dollars ($250). 

E. Returned Check or Electronic Funds Transfer Fees: 
     The Tourism Development Authority will assess a returned check charge consistent with G. S. 25-3-512 on all checks or electronic 

funds transfers returned to the County due to insufficient or unavailable funds, except for the payment of taxes. The returned check fee 
will be $25.00 per item returned.  This fee will also be charged for ACH or credit card transactions that are not paid due to insufficient 
funds.  The penalty for returned checks and electronic funds transfers for payment of taxes are governed by G. S. 105-357(2). 

F. Policy on Appropriations: 
        The Tourism Development Authority will not consider supplemental appropriations for any service, function, purpose or activity that 

could have been reasonably considered during the budget process. 

    SECTION 31.  USE OF BUDGET ORDINANCE 

           The Budget Officer and the Finance Director shall use this budget ordinance for administration of the budget and for the accounting system. 

68



48 June 3, 2013 

Adjourn 

There being no further business, the TDA meeting was adjourned. 

Closed Session 

Commissioner Aydlett moved to go into Closed Session pursuant to N.C. Gen. Stat. §143-
318.11(a)(6) to discuss personnel matters.  Commissioner Martin seconded the motion.  Motion 
carried unanimously.   

Adjourn 

After reconvening from closed session, no action was taken. 

There being no further business, the meeting adjourned. 

69



CURRITUCK COUNTY REGIONAL AIRPORT 

RULES AND REGULATIONS 

JUNE 17, 2013 

70



1- DEFINITIONS 

1,1 DEFINITIONS: 

A.  Aircraft - Any contrivance now known or hereafter invented, used or 

designed for navigation of or flight in air. 

B.  Air Operations Area - (AOA) is defined as an area used or intended to be 

used for landing, takeoff, or surface maneuvering of aircraft. 

C.  Airport - The Currituck County Regional Airport including all property 

and improvements within the boundaries thereof.   

D. Air Cargo - Property carried aboard an aircraft for compensation or hire. 

E.  Airport Employees - Persons employed by Currituck County whose duties 

include accomplishment of tasks at the Airport. 

F.  Airport Manager - The officer employed by Currituck County who is 

assigned responsibility and authority to manage Currituck County Regional Airport.  

The Airport Manager is responsible for the safety, operations, management, and 

maintenance of the Airport and is responsible for enforcement of these standards, 

rules and regulations. This includes the County Manager or any designee. 
F1. ALP- Airport Layout Plan a scaled drawing of existing and proposed land 

and facilities necessary for the operation and development of the airport. 

G.  Apron - A defined area, on the Airport, designated for loading, unloading, 

refueling, parking or maneuvering aircraft other than taxiways or runways.  Also, 

called the ramp area. 

H. AWOS – Aviation Weather Observation System located south of the 

Terminal Building providing weather information to aircraft and ground stations. 

H1. CFI- Certificated Flight Instructor. 

I   Commercial Activity – The exchange, trading, buying, hiring, or selling 

commodities, goods, services or tangible or intangible property off any kind; or any 

revenue producing activity on the Airport. 

J. Currituck County Airport Advisory Board (CCAAB) - The members of the 

Currituck County Airport Advisory Board are residents of Currituck County duly 

appointed by the Currituck County Board of Commissioners to serve in an advisory 

or consulting capacity. 

K.  Commercial Operator - An individual or firm providing aircraft or aviation 

services; i.e., aircraft servicing, maintenance, storage, rentals, sales, flight 

instruction; or carries persons or cargo for compensation or hire.  Anyone 

conducting a business-like operation at the Airport.   

L.   FAA - Federal Aviation Administration 

1 

71



L1. FAR- Federal Aviation Regulations 

M.  Fixed Base Operator - A commercial business granted the priviledge by 

Currituck County to operate on the airport and provide aeronautical services such 

as, but not limited to: 

a. Aircraft fueling, hangaring, maintenance, storage, rental, sales, etc.

b. Flight training/instruction.

c. Aircraft charter, sight-seeing tours.

N.  Fuel Truck - Any vehicle used for transporting or dispensing aviation fuel 

or lubricants. 

O. Fuel Flowage Fee – A fee due the airport for fuel that is brought onto the 

airport as set forth in list of approved fees. 

P.  Instructor - A person, properly certificated and engaged in instructing 

students in the operation, construction, repair or maintenance of aircraft including 

power plants and accessories and the repair, packing and maintenance of 

parachutes.  Includes those specializing in flight instruction called Certified Flight 

Instructors (CFI). 

Q.  Light Sport Aircraft –  A category of aircraft with several restrictions, 

including but not limited to speed, horsepower, hours of operation, etc. 

R.  Lineman – An employee of Currituck County who performs all routine 

service at Currituck County Regional Airport, including but not limited to: grass 

cutting, fueling of aircraft, cleaning and maintenance of facilities, etc.  

R1. MULTICOM- the common MULTICOM frequency assigned to Currituck 

County Regional Airport of 122.9. 

S. NEXTGEN – The Next Generation Air Traffic Control System, a tower for 

which is located on County property east of the Airport proper. 

T. NCDOA – North Carolina Division of Aviation.  

T1. NFPA- National Fire Protection Association. 

U. Non-Commercial Activity – Activities undertaken not for profit but for 

philanthropic, religious, charitable, benevolent, humane, public interest, or similar 

purpose. 

V. NOTAM – Notice to Airmen; Notice of a temporary or unusual occurrence 

at an airport. 

W.  Person - This term may include individual, partnership, groups, 

corporation, S-corporation or Limited Liability Company or authorized 

representatives thereof. 

X.  Public Airport Facilities - Facilities and services provided by Currituck 

County  for use by operators of aircraft including runway(s), taxiway(s), 

2 

72



ramp(s)/apron(s), hangars, shops, Terminal building and all other buildings and 

structures on the Airport proper. 

Y.  Ramp - See "Apron" 

Z.   Runway - Defined area(s) on the Airport designated for use of aircraft to 

conduct landings and take-offs. 

AA.  Taxiway - Defined area(s) on the Airport designated for use of aircraft to 

maneuver to and from the runway(s), ramp(s)/apron(s). 

BB.  Terminal Area - The area designated for use and containing the public 

airport facilities as well as areas outside and immediately adjacent to the Airport 

proper used for other services relating to the Airport such as but not limited to; 

automobile parking, and servicing, restaurant(s), other concessions, and services, 

hotels (if and when such facilities are constructed), etc. 

CC. Traffic Pattern (Pattern) - The configuration or form of a flight path 

prescribed to be flown in the immediate vicinity of the Airport for the purpose of 

approach to landing at, or departure from the Airport.  
             DD. TSA - Transportation Security Administration, the agency responsible for 

inspection and enforcement of security issues at General Aviation Airports. 

EE. Terminal Building – Facility at the airport consisting of Office Space, 

Lobby, Pilot’s Briefing Area, Conference Room, Rest Rooms, Crew Lounge, Utilities 

Room, etc.  

FF. Through–the-fence-operation – Those activities permitted by an airport 

sponsor through an agreement that permits access to the public landing area by 

independent entities or operations offering an aeronautical activity or to owners of 

aircraft based on land adjacent to, bu no part of, the airport property. Through the 

fence applies to property and not individuals. 

GG.  Transient Aircraft – An aircraft not using the airport as its permanent 

base of operations; Aircraft not listed on any hangar or tie-down lease at Currituck 

Airport. 

HH.  Ultralight - Any vehicle defined in FAR Part 103.  This vehicle is not 

considered to be a general aviation aircraft as defined here; however,  

operation of an ultralight is considered an aeronautical activity.   

II. UNICOM FREQUENCY – the common UNICOM frequency assigned to

Currituck County Regional Airport. 

JJ   Vehicle - A ground device used to transport property or persons including 

pedestrians.  

KK. Other Definitions Relating to Airports, Aircraft and the Operation Thereof 

may be found in FAR Part 1. 

3 

73



1.2:    NOT SUPERCEDE CONTRACTS 

A.  The above definitions shall not supercede any definitions contained in 

contractual agreements with Currituck County or a designated representative. 

4 

74



2. GENERAL

2.1.  PURPOSE 

A.  The mission of the Currituck County Regional Airport is to provide a safe, 

public use airport, providing quality services, being a good neighbor, and meeting 

the needs of the citizens and visitors.  A major purpose will be to serve as a 

destination airport for tourist traveling to the North Carolina Outer Banks. 

B.  These Airport Rules and Regulations, hereinafter referred to “Rules and 

Regulations,” are adopted to establish the necessary administrative, operational, 

safety regulations, and standards for the management, government, and use of the 

Currituck County Regional Airport.  The planned and professionally engineered 

growth of the Airport, through FAA and the NCDOA Airport Improvement Grants, is 

identified as a primary objective.  Economic development and growth will result in 

additional employment opportunities for Currituck citizens and provide a superior 

airport facility for the aviation community.   

C.  These Rules and Regulations become effective on the date they are 

published. 

2.2  SCOPE: 

A.  All users and persons on the Airport shall be governed by these 

regulations and the directions of the Currituck County Airport Manager or a 

designated representative.  These regulations are subject to temporary change by 

the Airport Manager at any time based upon experience, need, and operating 

conditions.  The Airport Manager may issue a certificate of waiver authorizing 

operations in deviation of these rules insofar as such waiver is not contrary to rules 

contained in the Federal Aviation Regulation's, or create a safety hazard on the 

Airport.  Major changes will be made as described below. 

B.  Use of the Airport or any of its facilities in any manner shall create an 

obligation on the part of the user to obey all regulations herein.  Such use shall be 

conditioned on the assumption of full responsibility and risk by the user, and shall 

release and hold harmless and indemnify Currituck County, its officers and 

employees from any liability for loss resulting from such use, as well as claims of 

third persons.  The privilege of using the airport shall be upon the further condition 

that any person, corporation, or others using the airport as a Commercial Operator 

or Fixed Base Operator, shall furnish a policy of indemnity against personal injury 

and property damage in a reasonable sum as Currituck County shall require, all said 

5 

75



insurance to name Currituck County and their officers, employees and personnel, as 

co-insured and the policy shall also contain a section stating that Currituck County 

shall be informed, in writing, by the insurance carrier ten (10) days prior to 

cancellation of the required insurance. 

C.  Any person violating any of the airport rules and regulations may be 

prosecuted as provided by law, ordinance and/or by these regulations.   

D.  These regulations are not intended to amend, modify or supercede any 

provision of Federal, State, or local regulations, or any specific contractual 

agreement of  Currituck County.  In the event of conflict, Federal, State, or local 

regulations shall govern. 

E.  If any portion of these regulations shall be or become invalid, all other 

portions shall remain in effect. 

F.  Proposed changes in these regulations shall be posted by the Airport 

Manager in a public area at the airport for a period of ten (10) days.  During this 

period comments may be submitted in writing to the Airport Manager.  Proposed 

changes will contain a closing date for comments.  After review of comments, 

revisions may be made and changes published.  The change will be posted at the 

airport and upon request, a copy will be provided to holders of the manual.  

Changes to these Rules and Regulations will be recommended for approval, signed 

by the Board Chairperson, and forwarded to the Currituck County Board of 

Commissioners for final approval. 

G.  No person shall engage in any business or commercial operation on the 

Airport except with the approval of and under such terms and conditions as may be 

prescribed by Currituck County.  See Section 13. 

H.  Soliciting for any purpose on the Airport without the permission of the 

Airport Manager is prohibited. 

I.  No person or firm shall construct or erect any building, sign or structure or 

modify any existing facility without specific approval of the Airport Manager. 

2.3  PENALTIES: 

A.  Currituck County may remove or cause to be removed from the airport 

premises any person(s) who knowingly and willfully violates any regulation or 

instruction, and may deny the use of the Airport to such person(s) if it is determined 

that such denial is appropriate.  It may impose other measures, which are permitted 

by law, to enforce Airport regulations and maintain control of the Airport. 

2.4  LOST ARTICLES: 

6 

76



A.  Lost articles shall be relinquished to the Airport Manager by the finders.  

Such articles not claimed in sixty (60) days shall be disposed of as determined by 

the Manager 

2.5  LIABILITY: 

A.  Currituck County assumes no responsibility for loss, injury or damage to 

persons or property by reason of fire, theft, vandalism, wind, flood, earthquake, 

collision, strikes, or acts of God or of the public enemy. 

2.6  ACCIDENT REPORTS: 

Persons involved in any accident: personal, aircraft or automotive, on the 

Airport, shall make a full report to the Airport Manager as soon after the accident as 

possible, and in any event within 24 hours after such occurrence.  Contact the 

Airport Manager at (252-453-2876).  See also section 3.5 for additional and Federal 

requirements. 

2.7  GROUND TRANSPORTATION: 

A.  No carrier for hire shall load or unload passengers at the Airport at any 

place other than those designated, without the approval of the Airport Manager. 

2.8  BUILDING REQUIREMENTS : 

A.  A person desiring to erect or construct a building or facility on the airport 

shall submit plans and specifications that are consistent with the latest version of the 

Airport Layout Plan and shall conform to the Building Code of the State of North 

Carolina and the County of Currituck and be approved by the proper building 

permits and inspections departments.  Prior to starting any construction, all licenses 

and permits must be obtained and a lease negotiated.   

2.9  RESTRICTED AREA; GENERAL: 

A.  All areas of the airport, except those areas open to the public, are 

restricted.  Unauthorized persons transgressing restricted areas are subject to 

prosecution. 

7 

77



3 - AIRCRAFT OPERATION 

3.1  AERONAUTICAL ACTIVITIES: 

A.  All aeronautical activities at this Airport and in the air space above this 

Airport shall be conducted in accordance with current regulations and directives, 

and/or advisories of the Federal Aviation Administration. 

B.  No fixed wing or rotary wing aircraft shall be allowed to operate at the 

Currituck County Regional Airport unless said aircraft has a current FAA 

Airworthiness Certificate and is operated by a person possessing a valid license or 

certificate for the operation being conducted. 

C.  All aircraft and operators shall comply with all applicable Federal 

Regulation, including but not limited to: 

     Federal Aviation Regulations: 

 Part 61-Certification:  Pilots & Flight Instructors 

Part 67-Medical Standards & Certification      

 Part 91-General Operating & Flight Rules 

 Part 93-Special Air Traffic Rules & Airport  Traffic Patterns         

              Part 135-Air Taxi Operators & Commercial Operators 

 Part 137-Agricultural Aircraft Operators 

 Part 141-Pilot Schools 

 Part 145-Repair Stations 

    National Transportation Safety Board Regulations: 

Part 830-Rules Pertaining to the Notification & Reporting of Aircraft Accidents 

or Incidents and Overdue Aircraft, and Preservation of Aircraft Wreckage, 

Mail, Cargo, and Records. 

3.2  AIRCRAFT REGISTRATION: 

A.  The owners of all aircraft based on the Airport will enter into a lease 

agreement with Currituck County prior to moving an aircraft into a hangar or long-

term tie-down spot.  All owners of the aircraft shall complete all required 

information, sign such lease and provide to the County current Certificates of 

Insurance (COI). Currently, the County’s Legal Department is coordinating all leases 

held with the County.    Any change in the ownership of the aircraft will require a 

change to the lease.. 

8 

78



3.3  PROHIBITING LANDINGS & TAKE-OFFS: 

A.  The Airport Manager may prohibit aircraft landing and taking off at any 

time and under any circumstances when it is deemed such operations may endanger 

persons or property, except for emergency landings.  Further, the Airport Manager 

may delay or restrict any operation at the airport when any of these rules and 

regulations are violated. 

3.4  PAYMENT: 

A.  Payment of all fees for hangar rents and tie-down rents are to be made by 

the first of each month by US Mail or in person to the Currituck County Finance 

Office located at the Historic Courthouse in Currituck, NC.  Fees for other items such 

as short term rental of the Maintenance Hangar, repairs, supplies, or other services 

rendered at the Airport shall be made to the appropriate office before flight or 

moving aircraft unless satisfactory arrangements have been made with the Airport 

Manager or the person responsible for furnishing the commodity or service 

rendered. 

3.5  ACCIDENTS: 

A.  A person involved in an aircraft accident on the Airport causing personal 

injury or property damage shall make a full report to the Airport Manager as soon 

after the accident as possible.  The report shall include:  name and addresses and a 

description of what and when an accident occurred.  In the event the person is 

unable to do so, his agent shall make such report.  When a written report of an 

accident is required by the Federal Aviation Regulations, and/or National 

Transportation Safety Board Regulations, a copy of such report shall be submitted to 

the Airport Manager. 

B.  In the event of an accident, the aircraft owner, through the Airport 

Manager may, in compliance with FAR's and other governmental regulations, 

remove damaged aircraft from the landing areas, ramps, aprons, or other areas at 

the expense of the aircraft owner and without liability to Currituck County for 

damage resulting from such removal. 

C.  Airport property damaged or destroyed by an accident or otherwise shall 

be paid for by parties responsible. 

D.  All aircraft accidents shall be reported to the FAA in accordance with all 

FAA and NTSB regulations. 

9 

79



3.6  NON-AIRWORTHY AIRCRAFT: 

A.  All non-airworthy and/or otherwise disabled aircraft and parts thereof on 

the Airport shall be promptly removed from Airport operations areas by the aircraft 

owner. 

B.  If any person refuses to move said aircraft or part thereof as directed by 

the Airport Manager, said aircraft or part may be removed at the owner's or 

operator's expense, and without liability to Currituck County for damage which may 

result in or after such removal. 

3.7  REFUSAL OF AIRPORT USE: 

A.  The Airport Manager may restrict any operations at the Airport for any 

reason.  The Airport Manager may prohibit totally or in part the use of the Airport for 

any purpose by an individual or group. 

3.8  CLOSING OF FIELD: 

A.  In the event the Airport Manager deems Airport conditions to be unsafe 

for landings or take-offs, he/she shall issue a NOTAM closing the Airport or any part 

thereof. 

3.9  REPAIRING OF AIRCRAFT: 

A.  The performance of aircraft and engine repair and maintenance is 

considered to be a commercial operation, except where such services or repairs are 

performed by the aircraft owner or his permanent employees.  The Airport Manager 

reserves the right to designate areas where aircraft owners may perform services on 

their own aircraft.  Outside vendors may conduct commercial maintenance 

operations and, depending on the scope of work, it may be conducted in the owner’s 

hangar or in the designated maintenance hangar.  Outside vendors must conform to 

the guidelines established in Sections 12 and 13. 

3.10  ENGINE RUN-UP: 

A.  No person shall perform run-up or prolonged engine test operations in 

any area that would result in a hazard or nuisance to other aircraft, persons, or 

property. 

3.11  PARKING OF AIRCRAFT: 

A.  No person shall park aircraft in any area on the Airport other than that 

designated by the Airport Manager. 

10 

80



3.12  TRANSIENT PARKING: 

A.  The Currituck County Board of Commissioners approved a County 

Administrative Procedure regarding Transient parking at Currituck County Regional 

airport to be effective on January 1, 2010. 

B.  The Airport Manager may designate and reserve a portion of the available 

aircraft parking area for transient use. 

C.  Any aircraft that has not contracted for hangar or tie-down space is 

permitted to park in a designated transient parking space for no more than seven 

days in a 60 day period. 

D.  The fee for exceeding the seven day period, without being granted an 

exception, is $7.00 per day to be paid to Currituck County.  An individual has the 

option to pay $10.00 for an entire month if he/she would park in the non-transient tie-

down area.  The owner/operator will be required to sign a short form holding the 

county harmless from any and all liability or loss as a result of parking in the non-

transient tie-down area. 

E.  If any aircraft is expected to be at the airport for longer than 30 days, the 

owner/operator is required to sign a longer term lease. 

F.  Violations of this section may result in removal and storage of the aircraft 

at the expense of the owner or operator, denial of use of the Airport, termination of 

lease agreements, and/or civil or criminal action for trespass. 

3.13  DEMONSTRATION: 

A.  No experimental flight or ground demonstrations shall be conducted on 

the Airport without the express approval of the Airport Manager. 

3.14  LIGHTING FACILITY DAMAGE: 

A.  Any person damaging any light or fixture by operation of an aircraft, or 

otherwise, shall report such damage to the Airport Manager immediately and may 

be responsible for any costs required to repair or replace the damaged facility. 

3.15  CATEGORIES OF AIRCRAFT: 

A.  Final determination as to proper category designation of any aircraft shall 

rest with the Airport Manager.  Charges shall be determined according to the 

following classifications: 

        1).  Private 

11 

81



a. Privately owned aircraft will be operated non- commercially by

owner or owners.   

b. Private aircraft may be used by persons other  than the owner

provided that it is not rented or leased by the owner for a profit. 

c. Company and corporation owned aircraft that are operated for the

free transportation of  their and other personnel and/or products are 

classified as private aircraft. 

d.. Club aircraft must be owned and operated by a non-profit 

partnership or group or non-profit North Carolina corporation, and must meet 

all the requirements of a non-profit club or corporation as prescribed by 

Federal, State and/or local regulations. 

2) Commercial Aircraft use:

a. For rental, hire or charter.

b. Student instruction for profit or hire.

c. Any aircraft used for commercial purposes and not otherwise

covered in these regulations. 

  3).  Air Taxi (Commuters) 

a. All FAA certified Air Taxis or Commuters.

3.16  OTHER: 

A.  No person shall start or run any aircraft engine unless a competent person 

is attending the aircraft controls.  Blocks shall always be placed in front of the wheels 

before starting the engine or engines unless the aircraft is provided with adequate 

parking brakes. 

B.  No person or persons, except airmen, duly authorized personnel, 

passengers going to or from aircraft, or persons being personally conducted by 

airport attendants shall be permitted to enter the landing area proper, taxi space, or 

aprons.  However, this does not give any person or persons so accepted the 

privilege of unrestricted use of the airport.  These privileges are confined to the 

necessary use of these spaces in connection with flights, inspections, and routine 

duties. 

3.17  LANDING AND TAKE-OFF: 

A.  Take-offs and landings shall conform to approved traffic patterns and 

minimum altitudes in the interest of public safety and a good neighbor policy. 

12 

82



B.  Prior authorization is required before air ships, dirigibles, motorless 

aircraft, or aircraft with a total gross weight in excess of 20,000 pounds single wheel, 

or FAA Certified Air Carriers, land or take off at the Airport. 

C.  Take-offs and landings shall be confined to the runways and movement of 

aircraft shall be confined to the hard surface areas, except as specifically authorized 

by the Airport Manager.  Takeoffs and Landings on the grass surface are prohibited 

unless specifically approved on a case by case basis by the Airport Manager, 

D.  Additional traffic rules are as follows: 

1) Landings and take-offs shall be made on the runway subject to the wind

direction.  Runway 5/23 is a 5,500 feet by 150 feet runway. 

2) Aircraft shall start their initial take-off from the end of the runway.

3) No landing or take-off shall be made except at a safe distance from

buildings and other aircraft. 

4) Aircraft entering the traffic pattern shall exercise caution and courtesy so

as not to cause aircraft already in the pattern to deviate from their course. 

5) Rotary wing aircraft shall conform to the pattern described herein for light

aircraft, and shall not be operated within 200 feet of any area where 

unsecured light aircraft are parked or operating, except during self-fueling at 

the fuel pumps. 

6) Unless an emergency situation exists, aircraft  are expected to utilize

standard traffic patterns. 

7) Simulated engine-out procedures and practice (Multi-engine aircraft) are

forbidden within the traffic pattern and approach area, unless notice is given 

by radio. 

8) No turn shall be made after take-off until the departure runway end has

been reached and within 300 feet of pattern altitude.  Aircraft shall climb to 

the appropriate traffic pattern altitude as soon as safely possible. 

E.  Taxi rules are as follows: 

1) No person shall taxi an aircraft until it has ascertained that there is no

danger of collision with any person or object. 

2) Aircraft shall be taxied at a safe and reasonable speed.

3) Aircraft not equipped with brakes shall have an attendant at a wing when

the aircraft is taxied on ramps or apron areas. 

4) Aircraft awaiting take-off shall stop at the taxiway hold lines for the runway

in use and ascertain that the way is clear prior to entering the runway in use. 

5) Aircraft taxiing shall conform to the designated taxi patterns.

6) Landings and take-offs are not permitted on taxiways.

13 

83



7) Engine checks and run-ups prior to take-off will be performed behind the

taxiway hold lines. 

8) Except for public displays and special flight demonstrations specifically

authorized by Currituck County, no person  shall operate an aircraft on or in 

the vicinity of the airport contrary to the FAR's. 

14 

84



4 – VEHICLES/PEDESTRIANS 

4.1  LICENSING AND REGULATION: 

A.  No person shall operate motor vehicles of any kind on the Airport without 

a valid Operator's License; nor create a safety hazard to operational aircraft. 

B.  No person shall operate any motorized vehicle in the Public Airport 

Facilities area without having first registered it with, and having received specific 

approval from the Airport Manager.  This includes golf carts. 

4.2  RULES OF OPERATION: 

A.  No unauthorized vehicles shall be operated on or around the ramp/apron 

area without permission of the Airport Manager. 

B.  No person shall operate a motor vehicle of any kind on the Airport in a 

reckless or negligent manner or in excess of 10 miles per hour in ramp, apron, 

aircraft parking, and hangar areas. 

C.  Pedestrians and aircraft shall have right of way over vehicular traffic. 

D.  Persons operating a motor vehicle on the Airport shall give proper 

signals, and observe the directions of posted traffic signs. 

E.  No person under the influence of alcohol or narcotic drugs shall operate a 

motor vehicle or aircraft on the Airport. 

F.  No person shall operate any motor vehicle on the Airport overloaded or 

carrying more passengers than that for which the vehicles were designed.   

G.  No vehicle shall be operated on the Airport if it is so constructed, 

equipped or loaded as to endanger persons or property. 

H.  No person shall operate any type of motor vehicle without exhausts 

protected by screens or baffles to prevent the escape of sparks or the propagation of 

flame. 

I.   Drivers of authorized vehicles are requested to limit their driving on the 

ramp/apron and walk from the hangar area to the Terminal Building, except in 

unusual circumstances. 

4.3  RADIO EQUIPMENT: 

A.  The installation of two-way radios does not permit the operation of 

vehicles on the Airport without prior permission from the Airport Manager. 

B.  No person shall operate any radio equipment in any aircraft when such 

aircraft is being refueled, or when such aircraft is in a hangar except when radio 

maintenance is being performed on the aircraft. 

15 

85



C.  All aircraft fitted with radios shall guard the local Unicom frequency and 

shall announce their locations during taxiing, landing and take off operations.  

4.4  EMERGENCY: 

A.  In the event of emergencies on the Airport, notification should be made to 

911, who will notify the proper response agencies.  

4.5  REPAIR OF MOTOR VEHICLES: 

A.  No person shall clean or make any repairs to motor vehicles on the Airport 

except those minor repairs necessary to remove such motor vehicles from the 

Airport, and permission for this must be obtained from the Airport Manager. No 

person shall move, interfere, or tamper with any motor vehicle, or put in motion the 

engine, or take, or use any motor vehicle part, instrument, or tool thereof, without 

permission or satisfactory evidence of the right to do so presented to the Airport 

Manager 

4.6  PARKING: 

A.  No person shall park a motor vehicle, for loading, unloading or any other 

purpose, on the Airport other than in the areas specifically established for that 

purpose and the manner prescribed without permission of the Airport Manager. No 

person shall abandon any motor vehicle on the Airport. No person shall park a motor 

vehicle in a manner so as to obstruct roadways; or in aircraft parking areas; or on 

grass areas.  Parking on grass areas interferes with grass cutting and causes ruts in 

the area on which the vehicle is parked. 

B.  No person shall park a vehicle in the Terminal Building parking lot for a 

period exceeding  one week without first providing contact information on the long-

term parking request form available from, and receiving permission from the 

Airport Manager.  A set of keys shall be left with the Airport Manager in case of the 

requirement for emergency movement of the vehicle. 

C.  Owners and operators of aircraft shall park their vehicles either in their 

hangars or outside the fence when flying.  Those vehicles are not to be left 

unattended on the flight line or areas near their hangar or tie-down for more than a 

few minutes without the Airport Manager’s permission. Personnel occupying the 

office in hangar A may park up to two cars on the concrete in front of hangar A-T-6 

during inclement weather. 

D.  The Airport Manager shall have the authority to tow or remove motor 

vehicles which are parked on the Airport in violation of these regulations, at the 

16 

86



owner's expense and without liability for damage which may result in the course of 

such removal. 

4.7  COURTESY CARS: 

A.  The Airport Manager or his designee may offer to transient aircrew a 

courtesy car owned by Currituck County.  This car is to be used for short periods of 

time for the convenience of the aircrew.  On occasion the aircrew may be authorized 

to keep the car overnight with the permission of the Airport Manager.  This will 

normally be done only very late in the day when no short term usage is anticipated, 

B.  Contact information, including a cell phone number, and a copy of the 

user’s driver license is required. 

C.  The user will be given the airport’s phone number in case of emergency. 

4.8  GATES: 

A.  Pedestrian gates are located adjacent to the Terminal Building Parking lot 

and east of the A hangar.   These are coded gates and all authorized users of the 

Airport are given the codes. 

B.  One Vehicle gate is located at the end of Airport Road and is a padlocked 

gate used for emergency vehicles and fuel delivery trucks.  It is to be unlocked and 

opened by Airport personnel or emergency vehicle operator only. 

C.  A second vehicle gate is located on the east side of the airport between 

hangars B and C and is a coded gate.  Only authorized users of the airport will be 

given the code to this gate. 

D.  Security of these gates is addressed in Section on Security. 

17 

87



5 - FIRE REGULATIONS 

5.1  SMOKING: 

A.  Smoking or lighting of an open flame is prohibited at places with posted 

signs, within 100 feet of any aircraft and within 100 feet of hangars, fuel trucks, or 

fuel loading stations, and tank farms.  

5.2  FIRES: 

A.  No person shall start an open fire any place on the airport. without 

permission of the Airport Manager. 

5.3  FLAMMABLE LIQUIDS: 

A.  No person shall use flammable volatile liquids having a flash point of less 

than 100 degrees Fahrenheit in the cleaning of aircraft, aircraft engines, propellers, 

appliances, or for any other purpose, unless such operations are conducted in open 

air, or in a room specifically set aside for that purpose. 

5.4  STORAGE OF FLAMMABLE MATERIALS: 

A.  No person shall store material or equipment, use flammable liquids or 

gases, or allow their premises to become in such condition so as to violate, in any 

manner, the fire code in force in the area of the airport.  The storage of paint thinner, 

fuels (more than a few gallons) or other such volatile materials in hangars is 

prohibited. 

5.5  FIRE EXTINGUISHERS: 

A.  Tenants of all hangars and buildings shall provide approved fire 

extinguishers and equipment, and they shall be kept in operating condition and 

inspected at least every twelve months by trained personnel. 

5.6  RECEPTACLES: 

A.  Lessees shall provide suitable metal receptacles with self-closing covers 

for the storage of waste, rags, and other rubbish.  All used waste and rags or other 

rubbish shall be removed by the lessees at least once each week.  Lessees may 

contract with other agencies or persons for removal of this material, subject to 

approval of Airport Management. 

18 

88



5.7  COLLECTION SITE: 

A.  A collection site for small amounts of fuel and oil is located on the south 

side of the fence surrounding the fuel storage tanks. Only oil should be dumped into 

the oil storage tank on the southside of the fuel farm. Requests to dump fuel must be 

made to airport personnel due to the container being locked within the fuel farm. 

Additionally, there is a small one gallon fuel container at the fueling station for 

disposing of fuel samples not returned to aircraft tanks. 

5.8  FEDERAL PROCEDURES: 

A.  The procedures and precautions outlined in the criteria of the National 

Fire Protection Association (NFPA Pamphlet #410D, Safeguarding Aircraft Cleaning, 

Painting and Paint Removal, and NFPA Pamphlet #410F, Aircraft Cabin Cleaning and 

Refurbishing Operations), shall be adhered to in all cleaning, painting and 

refurbishing operations using flammable fluids, including the storage of such fluids. 

19 

89



6 - FUELING OPERATIONS 

6.1  FUELING OF AIRCRAFT: 

A. The primary method of fueling of aircraft is self service from the credit 

card actuated fuel pumps located on the east side of the ramp area. All self fueling 

operations will be from approved facilities on airport property which meet all 

installation and safety criteria of the Federal Aviation Administration, N. C. Division 

of Aeronautics, National Fire Protection Association, and the American Petroleum 

Institute.   

B. Airport personnel are available during normal working hours to assist the 

aircraft operator in fueling aircraft when requested to do so.  Pumps provide step-

by-step instructions to dispense fuel.  These pumps do not take cash but will take 

most major credit cards and will provide a receipt.  Pumps can dispense either 

Aviation Gasoline (AVGAS) Low Lead 100 Octane (LL100) or Jet fuel (Jet A with 

additive). 

C.   A Fuel Truck is available to dispense Jet A with additive during normal 

working hours or by pre-arrangement.  Only certified airport personnel will 

dispense fuel from the truck.  The truck has both single point capability and over-

the-wing hoses.    

D.  No other fuel storage and/or dispensing equipment shall be installed or 

used at the airport without the prior written approval of the Airport Manager.   

E.  The use of any surface equipment other than approved fuel trucks or 

purchase of bulk fuel from the self serve pumps is prohibited, unless specifically 

authorized by the Airport Manager. 

F.  No aircraft shall be fueled or defueled while the engine is running, or 

being warmed by applications of exterior heat, or while such aircraft is in a hangar 

or enclosed space. 

G.  No aircraft shall be fueled or defueled within 50 feet of a hangar, or 

building. 

H.  Smoking or lighting of an open flame shall be prohibited within 100 feet of 

any fueling operation. 

I.  No person shall operate any radar, radio transmitter or receiver, or switch 

electrical appliances off or on in an aircraft during its fueling or defueling. 

J.  During refueling the aircraft shall be grounded or bonded to a point or 

points of zero electrical potential. 

K.  No person shall use any material during fueling or defueling of aircraft 

which is likely to cause a spark or be a source of ignition. 

20 

90



L.  Adequate fire extinguishers shall be within reach of all persons engaged 

in fueling or defueling aircraft. 

M.  Fueling hoses and equipment shall be maintained in a safe, sound and 

non-leaking condition and shall be approved by National Board of Fire 

Underwriters, and local Fire Marshal. 

N.  All hoses, funnels, and appurtenances used in fueling and defueling 

operations shall be equipped with a grounding device to prevent ignition of volatile 

liquids. 

O  No aircraft shall be fueled or defueled while persons are on board the 

aircraft. 

P.  Persons engaged in the fueling and draining of aircraft fuel shall exercise 

care to prevent spillage of fuel.  Persons responsible will take proper measures to 

remove any volatile liquid when it is spilled. 

Q. Any person electing to self fuel their aircraft will carry appropriate liability 

and product insurance. .   

            R.  All fuel brought on to the Airport will be subject to a fuel flowage fee to be 

negotiated with the Airport Manager 

6.2  STORAGE IN APRON AREA: 

A.  Gasoline, oil, and solvent drums or receptacles shall not be stored on 

apron and ramp areas. 

6.3  LIQUID DISPOSAL: 

A.  No fuels, oil, dopes, paints, solvents or acids shall be disposed of or 

dumped in drains, basins or ditches or elsewhere on the Airport.  Fuel and Oil may 

be disposed of as described in Section 5.7. 

6.4  EXPLOSIVES AND OTHER DANGEROUS ARTICLES: 

A.  No person shall store, keep, handle, use, dispense or transport at, in or 

upon the airport any Class A or Class B explosives (as defined in the Interstate 

Commerce Commission Regulations for transportation of explosives and other 

dangerous articles), or any Class A poison (as defined in the Interstate Commerce 

Commission Regulations for transportation of explosives and other dangerous 

articles), or any other poisonous substances, liquids or gases, any compressed gas, 

or any radioactive article, substance or material, which has not been approved by 

the Airport Manager and local Fire Marshall. 

21 

91



7 - GENERAL REQUIREMENTS 

7.1   HANGAR RENTAL AND USAGE: 

A.  Currituck County Regional Airport has a limited number of hangars 

available for rent.  There are 2 types of hangars,”T”-Hangars and “Corporate” 

Hangars.  T-hangars can accommodate one single-engine or one small twin –engine 

aircraft.  Corporate hangars can accommodate up to three aircraft depending on size 

and configuration.  Hangars are labeled: A (all T-hangars), B (hybrid with 2 

corporate and 7 T-hangars) and C (5 Corporate hangars).  It is a privilege, NOT A 

RIGHT, to rent a hangar at Currituck Airport.  A wait list is maintained for those who 

desire to rent a hangar when one becomes available in the future.  When a tenant 

sells an aircraft, the hangar reverts back to the control of the Airport Manager and 

does NOT convey with the aircraft. 

B.  HANGARS ARE FOR STORAGE OF AIRCRAFT ONLY.  Other items of a 

personal, household, or electrical nature may be allowed in the hangar with the 

Airport Manager’s permission. Each hangar has one electrical outlet and the C 

hangar has a special electrical plug issued to the renter. No other electrical outlets 

are permitted to be installed in the hangar without the Airport Manager’s 

permission.  Electrical usage for appliances (including refrigerators) and or other 

powered entities (including golf carts and tools) may result in a surcharge fee to be 

added to the monthly hangar rental fee. Electrical appliances, with the exception of 

refrigerators, will be unplugged when not in use.   Hangars may NOT be modified in 

any manner without the permission of the Airport Manager.  

C.  The office at the west end of Hangar A was configured as a working office 

for a maintenance operation or FBO working out of the Airport. Other uses may be 

approved by the County Manager. 

D.  The T hangars at the ends of the A hangar are interconnected with the 

ability to add partitions.  Hangars A1T and A6T have been used as a maintenance 

facility in the past and may be rented on a case by case basis for maintenance or 

transient use. Renters who use one of these hangars must acknowledge and agree 

that another person or aircraft may use the interconnected hangar which will allow 

access to the hangar they are renting.  They may available for long-term lease for a 

reputable and viable maintenance business.  Lease of A1T and/or A6T is permitted 

for short-term (one to two weeks) rental for out of the area transients, but must be 

available for maintenance purposes within two weeks of the start of rental.  If the 

hangars are offered for lease, they must be offered to clients on the wait list prior to 

being offered to someone not on the wait list. 

22 

92



E.  Hangars A5T and A11T are configured similar in set up to A1T and A6T. 

F.  There are two storage sheds located in Hangar B and under the control of 

the Airport Manager.  They are used for storage of airport equipment, including 

grass cutting equipment and the airport’s golf cart.  During emergencies, they may 

be used for other purposes (see Section 14).  

G.   A lean-to structure is located on the northwest corner of Hangar C to 

house the airport’s John Deere Tractor.  This will not be used by any tenant or for any 

other purpose without the County Manager’s approval. 

7.2  PRESERVATION OF PROPERTY: 

A.  No person shall destroy, injure, deface or disturb in any way any building, 

sign, equipment, marker, or other structure, tree, flower, lawn or other property on 

the Airport; nor alter, make additions to, or erect, any building or sign or make any 

excavations on the Airport without prior approval of the Airport Manager; nor 

willfully abandon any personal property on the Airport. 

7.3  INTERFERING OR TAMPERING WITH AIRCRAFT: 

A.  No person shall interfere or tamper with any aircraft or put in motion the 

engine of such aircraft, or use any aircraft, aircraft parts, instruments or tools, without 

permission of the owner or by specific direction of the Airport Manager 

7.4  RESTRICTED AREAS: 

A.  No person shall enter upon the field area, utilities and service rooms or 

areas, or other areas as may be designated restricted, except: 

1) Persons assigned to duty therein.

2) Persons authorized by the Airport Manager.

3) Passengers, under appropriate supervision, entering the apron for the

purpose of embarkation and debarkation. 

7.5  PASSENGER ACCESS AND AREAS: 

A.  It shall be the sole responsibility of the Airport Manager and Tenants to 

see that all gate chains, doors, and other public safeguards are continually and 

conscientiously used in a manner so to protect all persons. 

7.6  USE OF ROADS AND WALKS: 

A.  No person shall travel on the Airport other than the roads, walks or places 

provided for the particular class of traffic. 

23 

93



B.  No person shall occupy the roads or walks in such manner as to hinder or 

obstruct their proper use. 

7.7  ANIMALS: 

A.  No person shall enter the Airport with a dog or other animal (without the 

express permission of the Airport Manager) except; (1) service animals, or (2) dogs 

or other animals which are to be transported by air and are restrained by leash or 

properly confined. 

7.8  SOLICITATION: 

A.  No person shall solicit funds for any purpose, and no signs or 

advertisements may be posted at the airport without permission of the Airport 

Manager. 

7.9  USE OF SHOP AREAS: 

A.  All shops, garages, equipment and facilities are expressly for the conduct 

of the owner's or lessee's business and operations.  No persons other than 

employees of the Airport Manager or lessee shall make use of these facilities without 

individual and specific permission of the lessee.   

7.10  OPEN FLAME OPERATIONS: 

A.  No person shall conduct any open-flame operations in any hangar, or on 

the Airport unless specifically authorized by the Airport Manager or designated 

representative. 

7.11  SMOKING: 

A.  No person shall smoke in the Airport Terminal Building, apron, in any 

hangar, service station area, gasoline storage area, or in any building, room, or 

place on the Airport where smoking is specifically prohibited, or within 100 feet of 

any fueling or defueling operation. 

7.12  TRASH CONTAINERS: 

A.  No person shall keep uncovered trash containers in any area.  No vehicle 

used for hauling trash, dirt, or any other materials shall be operated on the Airport 

unless such vehicle is constructed so as to prevent the contents therein from 

blowing, dropping, sifting, leaking, or otherwise escaping.  Areas to be used for 

24 

94



trash or garbage containers shall be designated by the Airport Manager and no 

other areas shall be used.  Such areas shall be kept clean and sanitary at all times. 

7.13  FLOOR CARE : 

A.  All lessees on the Airport shall keep the floors of the hangars, hangar 

areas and Terminal apron and ramp areas, leased by them respectively, or used in 

their operation, clean and clear of oil, grease and other materials or stains except as 

may be provided to the contrary in any specific leases or contracts. 

7.14  STORAGE OF EQUIPMENT: 

A.  No tenant or lessee on the Airport shall store or stack material or 

equipment in such manner as to constitute a hazard to personnel or property. 

7.15  EQUIPMENT AND MISCELLANEOUS IN APRON AREA: 

A.  All ramp equipment shall be parked and kept in a neat and orderly 

manner.  No receptacles, chests, cases or housing shall remain on the apron or ramp 

area that do not fit in with the general architectural and cleanliness standards of the 

rest of the installation.  Final approval of these items rests with the Airport Manager. 

7.16  MAINTENANCE: 

A.  All tenants shall maintain their leased property in such condition or repair, 

cleanliness, and general maintenance as shall be acceptable to the Airport Manager 

and in accordance with their individual lease agreements. 

7.17  DAMAGES: 

A.  Tenants, lessees, and grantees shall be fully responsible for all damages 

to buildings, equipment, real property and appurtenances in the ownership or 

custody of the Airport Manager, its tenants, or others caused by negligence, abuse, 

or carelessness on the part of their employees, agents, customers, visitors, 

suppliers, or persons with whom they may do business. 

7.18  WASTE MATERIALS: 

A.  Garbage, refuse and other waste material shall be placed in receptacles 

provided for such purpose and no person shall destroy, remove or disturb in any 

way buildings, signs, equipment, markers, or other property on the airport. 

25 

95



7.19  DEFAULT OF OBLIGATIONS: 

 A.  When any tenant, user, or grantee is formally notified that he is in default 

of any written or implied obligation to Currituck County, whether it be for breach of 

performance or service covenants or non-payment, he shall thereafter be billed for 

all losses of revenue, expenses incurred to re-establish performance or service, 

reasonable attorney fees and other costs, unless the tenant, user, or grantee files 

with Currituck County or designated representative within ten days of receipt of the 

formal notification a statement that corrective or preventive measures have been 

initiated and will diligently be carried to completion.  If the promises contained in 

the statement are not fulfilled, the tenant, user, or grantee will be considered in 

absolute default and appropriate lawful steps shall be taken by Currituck County 

 

7.20  USE OF LAW ENFORCEMENT AGENCIES: 

 A.  In the event that occasions arise that are beyond the capability of the 

Airport Manager to deal with in any manner, the Currituck County Sheriff’s Office 

shall be called upon by the Airport Manager for assistance and action as may be 

necessary . The Airport Manager expressly grants permission to the Currituck 

County Sheriff's Department to enter the premises and to enforce the Rules and 

Regulations contained here-in and as may be adopted.  

 26 

96



8. TERMINAL BUILDING

8.1  BACKGROUND AND DESCRIPTION: 

A.  In accordance with the Airport Layout Plan, a Terminal Building was built 

with Grant Funds and dedicated in 2003.  It is located adjacent to the southeast 

portion of the ramp/apron area.  It consists of an operations center, lobby, 

Manager’s office, pilot briefing area, multiple rest rooms, conference room, crew 

lounge including shower and rest room, and utilities room.  The building is under 

the control of the Airport Manager 

8,2,  USE OF FACILITIES: 

A.  The conference room is available for aviation related or economic 

development activities and can be reserved by contacting the Airport Manger.  

While it has a small microwave oven, and counter space with a sink, it is NOT to be 

used for cooking, frying, or otherwise preparing foods that would cause the room to 

provide a less-professional  atmosphere to the traveling public.  Meals may be 

provided for consumption in the conference room but they must be prepared 

elsewhere.  An effort will be made to provide a sheltered “picnic” area outside the 

building where food may be prepared. 

B. The operations center is the hub of airport activity and is manned by the 

Linemen during normal working hours when they are not being utilized outside of 

the building.  Unauthorized personnel are NOT permitted in the center at any time 

without the Airport Manager’s permission.  The center houses the airport radio, 

AWOS display, and everything required to conduct and monitor airport operations. 

C. The Crew lounge is available during all hours of the day or night for 

visiting aircrew.  It contains a sleeper sofa and full shower for the convenience of the 

aviation community.  It, like the entire building, is accessible on a 24/7 basis via an 

unsecured door from the ramp area.  It is to be kept in a clean and orderly fashion 

by anyone using the facility. 

D.  Pilot’s Briefing Area is available 24/7 and contains a computer, printer, 

internet service and telephone service to obtain weather briefings and clearances. 

E.  An ice machine is located in the utility room area and is available to the 

public only when the building is manned by airport personnel. 

F.  The lobby area is a moderately sized waiting or resting area with 

numerous comfortable chairs and the latest of aviation newsletters and magazines.  

It has direct access to both the vehicle parking lot and ramp area.  Passengers 

27 

97



waiting for flights to arrive or depart should remain in this area.  There are vending 

machines available. 

G. The Airport Manager’s Office is located adjacent to the Operations Center.  

No unauthorized or uninvited persons are permitted in this office. 

8.3 BUILDING SECURITY: 

             A.  The front door to the Terminal Building is open from 7 AM until 5 PM when 

it is automatically locked through a timer system.  The door to the ramp from the 

lobby area is open during those hours and manually locked when the building is 

vacated by airport personnel at the end of normal hours.  The door from the 

operations center to the ramp is used only by authorized personnel and locked at 

the end of normal business hours.  The door to the ramp area at the northeast end of 

the building is open 24/7. 

B.  Interior doors to the operations center, manager’s office and utility room 

are locked when airport personnel depart for the day. 

C.  Security cameras are located in the building and continually record and 

store any activity going on in the lobby and hallway. 

D.  A pull down security door is located over the counter area and closed 

when the linemen depart for the day.  This provides additional security for the 

operations center.   

. 

28 

98



9. AIRPORT SECURITY

9.1  BACKGROUND: 

  A.  The events that occurred on September 11, 2001 changed the way that 

security at General Aviation Airports is managed.  The Department of Homeland 

Security and under it, the Transportation Security Administration (TSA), was 

established.  In 2008, the TSA was given responsibility to inspect all General 

Aviation Airports in addition to the larger commercial airports.  Currituck County 

Regional Airport was inspected for the first time in September of  2009 and again in 

June of 2010.  No discrepancies were noted, but the Inspector highlighted areas of 

concern. 

9.2  SECURITY ISSUES: 

A.  In the mid-2000s fencing was installed around the south end of the airport 

property. However, fencing is not continuous around the north end of the property.  

B,  All gates and doors must be continuously monitored to ensure that 

unauthorized personnel do not enter airport property.  It is the individual’s 

responsibility to ensure that pedestrian or vehicle gates are closed and locked 

before proceeding away from the gate.  Vehicles should not leave the gate area until 

the gate starts to close and should keep the gate in sight until it is fully closed 

C,  Unauthorized personnel tampering with any of the security equipment or 

gate closure mechanisms will be penalized. 

D.  Codes to the gates will NOT be given to unauthorized personnel.. If an 

individual needs to drive onto the apron or ramp area to deliver or pick up 

passengers or cargo, airport personnel will accompany them or meet them at the 

vehicle gate. 

9.3  SECURITY CAMERAS: 

A.  A system of security cameras is installed in various locations at the airport.  

They monitor the Terminal Building and the ramp, hangars, fuel pumps, parking lot 

and gate areas.  These cameras record ongoing activity and have a storage 

capability.  Monitors are located in the operations center and on the Airport 

Manager’s computer monitor.    

9.3  IDENTIFICATION BADGES: 

A.  All hangars and tie-down lessees must have a Currituck County Airport 

identification badge.  The badge will identify the person as an authorized user of the 

29 

99



airport area and also open the front door of the Terminal Building after hours when it 

is locked. 

B.  Badges may be obtained at the County Emergency Management Office.  A 

list of all authorized users will be provided to that office by the Airport Manager. 

9.4 ANNUAL SECURITY REQUIREMENTS: 

A. Annual security inspections of the airport by TSA personnel are required.  

In addition, all CFIs working at the airport are required by TSA to have 

annual training.  This training is computer-based and all CFIs are notified 

by TSA of it’s being a requirement.  CFIs must report compliance with 

these new rules to the Airport Manager. 

30 

100



10 - HAZARDOUS CARGO 

10.1  AIRCRAFT CARRYING OR SUSPECTED OF CARRYING EXPLOSIVES: 

A.  Landing or taxiing aircraft: 

1) Persons having knowledge of an aircraft carrying or suspected of

carrying explosive materials will immediately advise the Airport Manager. 

2) Aircraft having passengers aboard will unload passengers on the taxiway

adjacent to the Runway. (Only engines affecting unloading of passengers 

should be shut off to enable subsequent moving of aircraft with a minimum of 

delay).  A NOTAM will be issued, closing the airport until such time it is 

determined the aircraft is safe. 

B.  Inspection: 

 Inspection of the aircraft and subsequent declaration of safety or 

contamination shall be the responsibility of the aircraft owner or his   

authorized agent, and shall be accomplished immediately after parking and 

evacuation. 

31 

101



11- SCHEDULE OF CHARGES - AIRCRAFT 

11.1  COMMERCIAL OPERATIONS: 

A.  No aircraft, aviation organization or person shall engage in any 

commercial operation of any type at the Airport unless a concession agreement and 

lease, if required, is in effect with Currituck County.  The CCAAB and Airport 

Manager will provide the necessary information and will make a recommendation 

on such activity to the Currituck County Board of Commissioners who will have the 

final authority to approve such a commercial operation.   

Any fees associated with this activity will be recommended by the CCAAB and 

approved by the Currituck County Board of Commissioners. 

B.  The Airport Manager and/or CCAAB may recommend a fee schedule to be 

applied to operators/aircraft for landing or ramp usage.  All fees will be approved 

by the Currituck County Board of Commissioners and be published in the Currituck 

County Master Fee Schedule, which is contained in Currituck County’s Annual 

Budget and posted on the county website. Interim changes will be posted on the airport 
bulletin board. 

C. The Airport Manager may assess charges for utilities (electricity, water, etc) 
utilized by transient or tenant aircraft or persons. 

D.  The Airport Manager, along with the Sheriff’s Department, may detain any 

aircraft for nonpayment of any charges due. 

11.2  GOVERNMENT (PUBLIC) AIRCRAFT: 

A.  The following types of aircraft are not affected by these charges. 

Aircraft owned by Federal, State, or Municipal Governments are exempt from both 

landing and parking fees. 

11.3  SPECIAL SERVICES: 

A.  The Airport Manager may grant written permission for a specific 

commercial operator to enter the airport for the purpose of repairing or maintaining 

an aircraft or equipment which is beyond the capability of any maintenance 

operator located on the airport.  This privilege will be on a case-by-case basis and 

will require a separate agreement for each activity. Provisions of 2.5 shall apply. 

B.  Any permission granted by the Airport Manager under this clause will not 

be construed as allowing recurring entry to the premises for the purpose of 

providing services.  The permission granted will be only for a specific purpose and 

specific period.  

32 

102



12 - PROCEDURES FOR RECEIVING 

AND PROCESSING APPLICATIONS 

12.1  APPLICANTS: 

A.  Any applicant wishing to establish commercial operations on the airport 

shall be furnished a copy of the minimum standards, attached hereinafter as Section 

13, and shall make application in writing to the Airport Manager, setting forth in 

detail the following: 

1) The name and address of the applicant;

2) The proposed land use, facility and/or activity sought;

3) The names and the qualifications of the personnel to be involved in

conducting such activity 

4.) The financial responsibility and technical ability of the applicant and 

operator to carry out the activity sought; 

5) The tools, equipment, services and inventory, if any, proposed to be

furnished in connection with such activity; 

6) The requested or proposed date for commencement of the activity and the

term of conducting the same; 

7) The estimated cost of any structure or facility to be furnished, the

proposed specifications for same, and the means or method of financing such 

construction  or acquisition of facilities. 

B.  Upon the filing of such an application with the Airport Manager, it shall be 

evaluated to determine whether or not the applicant meets the minimum standards 

and qualifications as herein established.  The Airport Manager shall refer all 

applications to the CCAAB and considered at the next scheduled meeting.  At the 

discretion of the CCAAB chairman, a special meeting may be called prior to the next 

scheduled meeting for considering same and notice thereof given to the applicant. 

C.  Upon approval of any such application in principle, the CCAAB shall 

recommend to the Board of Commissioners that the county prepare a suitable 

concession agreement or contract and lease, if appropriate,  setting forth the terms 

and conditions under which the commercial operation shall be conducted. 

D.  Any recommendation of denial shall be returned to the applicant within 

ten (10) days of the CCAAB meeting with a written explanation of the reasons for 

rejection. 

E. Once obtaining a recommendation of denial from the CCAAB and as part of 

the appeal process, the applicant may if desired make application directly with the 

Currituck County Board of Commissioners at a regularly scheduled board meeting. 

33 

103



13 - MINIMUM STANDARDS FOR COMMERCIAL OPERATIONS, 

FIXED BASE OPERATORS OR ANY BUSINESS-LIKE OPERATION. 

13.1  GENERAL: 

A.  The following minimum standards shall apply to all operations.  However, 

all the activities listed may not be provided depending on the lease or concession 

agreement executed between Currituck County and the operator, and those 

excluded activities therefore will not apply. 

B.  For any corporation, business, individual or entity desiring to do any 

commercial or business-like operation on Airport property the following process 

will be followed: 

1) A proposal must be submitted to the Airport Manager describing the

activity with sufficient detail to be evaluated. 

2)  The proposal will be evaluated by the Airport Manager.

3) It will be forwarded to the CCAAB for review and recommendation.

The CCAAB may invite the operator(s) to attend a meeting for an interview. 

4) If appropriate, the proposal will be forwarded to the Economic

Development Director for review and recommendation. 

5) If approved, it will be forwarded to the Legal Department for

preparation of a lease and/or concession agreement.  This will be developed in 

conjunction with the Airport Manager and/or Economic Development Director. 

        6). It will be sent to the County Manager who will take it to the Currituck 

County Board of Commissioners who may approve both the agreement and fee 

structure.  

C.  Operators extended the privilege of providing self fueling services shall 

also be required to meet the minimum safety standards listed in Section 6. 

D.  No persons or fixed base operators other than the operators qualifying 

under (C) will be permitted to dispense aviation petroleum products.  All other 

operators may engage in such other aeronautical services as they may qualify 

themselves for in accordance with these regulations and their lease agreements. 

E.  The Airport Manager shall determine substantial conformance to the 

standards for all operators. 

F.  All operators are requested to show financial solvency and business ability 

to the CCAAB, Airport Manager, Finance Department and Legal Department. 

34 

104



G.  The minimum liability insurance which a fixed base operator shall carry 

including general liability, product liability, and premise liability, as appropriate is 

$1,000,000.  Hangar's keeper/property damage insurance carried by the operator 

will be decided on between Currituck County and the operator but in no case will be 

less than $100,000.  All policies required by virtue of this section will name as co-

insured, Currituck County, and will contain a provision which will require the 

insurance carrier to notify Currituck County at least ten (10) days prior to any 

cancellation, or change in coverage. 

H.  All operators will be required to furnish Currituck County a performance 

bond commensurate with any construction required under the minimum standards of 

service to be performed. 

I.  All construction required herein shall be in accordance with the Airport 

Layout Plan, design and construction standards established by Currituck County and 

approved by the North Carolina Division of Aviation and Federal Aviation 

Administration for the facility involved.  

J.  A newly developed business park with lot sizes ranging from three to 

twenty-five acres in “shovel-ready” condition is available adjacent to the airport… 

13.2  FUEL AND OIL: 

A. All aeronautical activities granted permission by Currituck County and 

engaged in self fueling of aircraft at the airport shall be subject to a fuel flowage fee, 

which shall be established by the Currituck County Board of Commissioners.  

B.  In conducting refueling operations, every operator shall install and use 

adequate grounding facilities at fueling locations to eliminate the hazards of static 

electricity and shall provide approved types of fire extinguishers or other 

equipment commensurate with the hazard involved in refueling and servicing 

aircraft.   

C.  Meet all other requirements as set forth in Section 6. 

13.3  AIRCRAFT MAINTENANCE AND REPAIR: 

A. All persons operating aircraft engine and accessory maintenance facilities 

shall provide: 

1) Sufficient hangar space to house any aircraft upon which such service is

being performed. 

2) Suitable storage space for aircraft awaiting maintenance or delivery after

repair and maintenance have been completed. 

35 

105



3) Adequate shop space to house the equipment and adequate equipment

and machine tools, jacks, lifts and testing equipment to perform top overhauls as 

required for FAA certification and repair of parts not needing replacement on all 

single engine land and light multi-engine land general aviation aircraft. 

4) At least one FAA certified air frame and engine mechanic available either

on-site or by telephone during reasonable business hours. 

5) Facilities for washing and cleaning aircraft.

6) Non-airworthy aircraft shall be screened from public view.

7) Separately partitionable space with adequate exhaust fans and fire

protection for spray painting if this type work is performed. 

8) Appropriate insurance as outlined in 13.1.G.

13.4  FLIGHT TRAINING: 

A.  All persons conducting flight training activities shall provide: 

1) At least one properly certificated flight instructor (CFI) for single engine

land airplanes. 

2) At least one dual equipped single engine land aircraft properly equipped

and maintained for flight instruction and such additional types of aircraft as may be 

required to give flight instruction of the kind advertised. 

3). Adequate classroom space with proper rest room and seating facilities.  A 

part of the required facilities, with the consent of the Airport Manager, may be 

located off airport property.  Arrangement for use of Airport facilities is possible. 

4) Adequate mock-ups, pictures, slides, film strips or other visual aids

necessary to provide proper ground school instruction. 

5) Properly certificated instructor providing regularly scheduled ground

school instructions sufficient to enable students to pass the FAA written 

examinations.  If the Ground School is conducted through an accredited College or 

University, agreements must be negotiated between Currituck County and the 

sponsoring agency. 

6) Continuing ability to meet certification requirements of the FAA for the

flight training proposed. 

7) Public liability and property damage insurance sufficient to protect the

operator and  Currituck County from legal liabilities involved, and shall provide 

passenger liability insurance of at least $100,000, per passenger seat and property 

damage liability of at least $1,000,000.  All policies required by virtue of this section 

shall name as co-insured Currituck County, and shall contain a provision requiring 

36 

106



the insurance carrier to give Currituck County at least 10 days notice prior to any 

cancellation or change in coverage. 

8) All CFIs must adhere to the new TSA requirements for training.

13.5  COMMUTER, CHARTER, AND AIR TAXI SERVICE: 

A. Persons operating commuter, charter, or air taxi service shall provide: 

1).  Passenger lounge, rest room and telephone facilities as appropriate. The 

Terminal Building lobby and rest rooms may be used for this purpose.  

2) Adequate table, desk or counter for checking in passengers, handling

ticketing or fare collection, handling of luggage. 

3) Shall have properly certificated suitable aircraft with properly certificated

and qualified operating crew available for service when not otherwise engaged in 

such service.   

4) Appropriate insurance as outlined in this document

13.6  AIRCRAFT RENTAL AND SALES: 

A.  Persons conducting aircraft rental and sales activity shall provide: 

1) Suitable office space for consummating sales and/or rentals and the

keeping of the proper records in connection thereof. 

2).  Hangar, tie-down or other storage space for at least one aircraft to be 

used for sales or rental. 

3) For rental, at least one airworthy aircraft suitably maintained and

certificated. 

4).  Adequate facilities for servicing and repairing the aircraft or satisfactory 

arrangements with other operators for such service and repair. 

5) There shall be available, either on-site or by telephone, during

reasonable business hours, a properly certificated pilot capable of demonstrating 

new aircraft for sale or for checking out rental aircraft. 

6).  The minimum stock of readily expendable spare parts, or adequate 

arrangements for securing spare parts required for the type of aircraft and models 

sold. 

7) Current up-to-date specifications and price lists for types and models of

new aircraft sold. 

8).  Proper check lists and operating manuals on all aircraft rented and 

adequate parts catalogues and service manuals on new aircraft sold. 

9) Appropriate Insurance as outlined in this document.

37 

107



13.7  MISCELLANEOUS OPERATIONS: 

A.  Miscellaneous operations such as radio and instrument repairs, aerial 

advertising, and other activities not hereinbefore provided for may be conducted by 

any person, firm or corporation upon application and approval as outlined in Section 

13.1 B.  Reasonable terms and conditions for the privilege of engaging in these 

various services will be established by the departments listed in that section 

commensurate with the nature and scope of the activities involved. 

13.8  HANGAR SPACE : 

A. Hangar space, office and lounge space, aircraft parking area and other 

such required facilities will be considered in aggregate where an operator offers 

multiple services in order that facility requirements will be adequate and reasonable 

for the services offered. 

13.9  MINIMUM STANDARDS : 

A.  Minimum standards for hangars, shops or other buildings to be 

constructed on the airport.  Maintenance shops shall contain a minimum of 1,400 

square feet of floor space.  These buildings shall be fireproofed and of metal or 

masonry construction, with properly designed doors stressed in accordance with the 

national building code, floor of properly constructed concrete or asphalt of sufficient 

designed load strength to sustain all types of aircraft using the facility. 

B.  Areas of office space, rest rooms, and lounge which may be an adjunct to 

other buildings, must also be fireproofed and of steel or masonry construction. 

13.10  AIRCRAFT PARKING APRONS: 

A.  Aircraft parking aprons shall be constructed according to the Airport 

Layout Plan and specifications approved by Currituck County.  Areas of aircraft 

parking apron may be required for operators handling aviation petroleum products, 

and aircraft repair. 

13.11  SERVICES: 

A.  All services shall be provided on a fair, equal, and not unjustly 

discriminatory basis to all users of the airport.  The prices charged for each unit of 

service shall be fair, reasonable, and not unjustly discriminatory,  provided, that the 

operator may be allowed to make reasonable and nondiscriminatory discounts, 

rebates, or other similar type price reductions to volume purchasers. 

38 

108



13.12  OPERATOR: 

A.  The operator shall provide his services in accordance with the provisions 

of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (P.L. 88-352), as amended.  Accordingly, no 

person shall be denied equal services on the grounds of race, color, sex, or national 

origin. 

39 

109



14 – SPECIAL AIRPORT USES 

14.1  PUBLIC USE: 

A.  Currituck County obligates itself to operate the airport for the use and 

benefit of the public and to keep the airport open to the various types, kinds, and 

classes or aeronautical use for which the airport facility is designed and intended to 

serve. 

14.2  SPECIAL RULES: 

A.  Currituck County has established these rules to be met by all users so as 

to provide for the safe and efficient use of the airport and to otherwise protect the 

safety of persons and property both on the ground and in the air. 

14.3  LANDING AREA: 

A.  It is understood that the landing area facilities constructed are primarily 

intended for the use of powered aircraft whose weights are not in excess of the 

published strengths of the paved surfaces concerned.  Operations on these surfaces 

by aircraft slightly in excess of the published pavement strengths may be permitted 

on an infrequent basis with the permission of the Airport Manager. 

14.4  NON-POWERED AIRCRAFT: 

A.  No operations involving nonpowered aircraft, including gliders, balloons, 

parachuting and other unusual and special classes of activities, will be permitted on 

the airport without the prior approval of the Airport Manager. 

14.5  UNLICENSED AIRCRAFT: 

A.  No operations involving unlicensed or unregistered aircraft will be 

permitted on the airport without prior approval of the Airport Manager. 

14.6  CROP DUSTING: 

A.  Persons seeking to conduct crop dusting or spraying of  agricultural 

chemicals shall be required to satisfy the Airport Manager that: 

1) Suitable arrangements have been provided for the safe storage and

containment of noxious chemical materials; no poisonous or inflammable materials 

shall be kept or stored in close proximity to other facility installation at the airport. 

2) The operator shall have available properly certificated aircraft suitably

equipped for the agricultural operation undertaken. 

40 

110



3) No crop dusting operation shall be conducted on the principal public use

apron or ramp of the airport.  Adequate operational space shall be assigned by the 

Airport Manager. 

4) That all operations will be in accordance with all appropriate Federal

Aviation Regulations, and State and Local Regulations concerning the handling of 

pesticides and other noxious substances.  

5) That all expenses of the operation will be borne by the operator, including,

but not limited to, payment for the use of county water. 

14.7  TOWING OPERATIONS:  A: Hang glider and banner towing aircraft operating 

from Currituck Regional Airport may create unique safety related hazards. 

Operators proposing to offer towing operations shall: 

1) Submit a written plan describing proposed procedures, area(s) of

operation and hazard mitigation. 

2) At least annually, obtain approval from the Airport Manager to operate. As

part of the approval process, the Airport Manager may require additions to the 

written plan to mitigate hazards.  

3) Enter a concession agreement with Currituck County.

14.8  OTHER OPERATIONS:  A. Any operator proposing to routinely operate from 

Currituck Regional Airport is encouraged to contact the Airport Manager for 

opportunities that may be available. 

14.9  NON-AVIATION EVENTS: 

A.   Considering Currituck County’s obligation to keep the airport open to the 

public for aeronautical purposes, the airport facilities will not be used for non-

aviation events which conflict with its aeronautical use. 

14.10  EMERGENCY USE: 

A.  During times of emergency, such as hurricane or other natural disaster, 

the Airport will be used as a staging area for receipt and dispersal of supplies,  

Water, ice, food and other supplies will be stored in one of the airport’s storage 

sheds until dispersed to sites where needed. 

41 

111



15. THROUGH THE FENCE OPERATIONS

 15.1  FAA REVIEW: 

A.  As a result of security concerns, the FAA recently conducted a review of 

Through-the-Fence (TTF) operations at all public-use airports.  Their recently 

released ruling is that existing TTF operations would be allowed to continue as long 

as all rules and regulations pertaining to their operation are followed.  New TTF 

operations will be evaluated on a case-by-case basis. 

15.2  BRADY LANDING: 

A. Brady Landing, a Residential Airpark located on the west side of the 

Airport, was approved by Currituck County, NCDOA and FAA during the early 

2000’s.  The Airpark has access to the Airport by a lease easement.  The Airpark 

was subject to North Carolina Division of Aviation and the Federal Airport 

Administration approval. 

15,3  CONTROLLED ACCESS: 

A. Access to airport for through the fence operations must be controlled 

for the safety of the general public and users of the airport.  Aircraft on approach to 

landing or taking off on the runway shall have the right-of-way over TTF operations 

access.   

15.4  HOME OWNERS ASSOCIATION HANDBOOK: 

A.  Brady Landing Airpark Home Owners Association published in 2010 a 

Handbook for operations of the Airpark.  This was distributed to Airpark residents 

and County officials. 

B.  The handbook reviews the history of the development of the airpark, rules 

and regulations to be followed, and responsibilities of the users of the airpark. 

C.  Two appendices to the handbook address mandatory Safety and Security 

Procedures, and Airport Usage/Access Fees.   

1) A key point made in the section on Safety and Security Procedures is that

the user must wait for the gate to and from the airport to completely close before 

taxiing away.  Also, the user is not to permit unauthorized aircraft or people to use 

the gate while waiting for it to close. 

42 

112



2) The Usage/Access Fee section explains that FAA requires a usage fee to

meet the “equitable compensation” test.  The usage fee has been set by Currituck 

County Board of Commissioners. 

15.5 FUTURE: 

A.  Any future developers of through the fence operations, whether to a 

residential airpark or a commerce park must: 

           1).  Limit access to the entrance to the Airport to users of adjoining airpark 

subdivisions, owners and employees of industrial or commerce airpark 

developments, or individual lot or property owners. 

2) Control/maintain access to the Airport with locked gates or electronically

operated gates that will stay in the closed position when not in use. 

3) Install/maintain 360 degree amber warning lights to signal that control

gates are open and   aircraft or other vehicles are moving to the runway.  The lights 

shall be mounted on a pole at the gates at a minimum height of ten (10) foot above 

grade.  Installation must be coordinated with Currituck County and meet FAA 

requirements and standards.  

4) Aircraft and vehicles using the entrance must be equipped with two-way

radios and announce their intentions when approaching or exiting the entrance to 

the airport. 

5) Install/maintain signage at the taxiway from airport facilities onto the

runway instructing pilots to announce intentions to enter the runway or to taxi to  

through the fence easements on MULTICOM, to stop prior to entering the runway to 

see that their movements can be made safely. 

6) Mark all through the fence easements with six (6) inch wide yellow stripes

and approved stop bars. 

7) Install culverts in airport drainage swales of sufficient size as specified by

the County to allow proper drainage for all easements into the Airport. 

8) Post notice of procedures for aircraft entering the airport from through the

fence projects at the airport hangars, kiosks, and fueling area. 

9) Provide notice of airport use to others including but not limited to aircraft

owners using the hangars and tie-downs at the airport. 

10) Conduct educational training to Airport Users for the through the fence

projects. 

B.. Users shall indemnify and hold the County and the State of North 

43 

113



 Carolina harmless for any and all causes of actions, claims, demands, judgments, or 

any other obligation arising from the use of the through the fence access to the 

airport, including reasonable attorney’s fees. 

15,6  ACCESS: 

A. The County, at its sole discretion, can deny access at any time for 

safety concerns, i.e. for adverse weather conditions, runway repairs, safety 

considerations, etc.   

RECOMMENDED CURRITUCK COUNTY AIRPORT ADVISORY BOARD 

APPROVAL:  BY:______________________________________ 

DATE:____________________________________ 

RECOMMENDED CURRITUCK COUNTY MANAGER 

APPROVAL:   BY:_____________________________________ 

DATE:___________________________________ 

APPROVED:  CURRITUCK COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

BY:_____________________________________ 

DATE:___________________________________  

44 

114



115



116



117



R E S O L U T I O N 

WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners of Currituck County, 
North Carolina during its regularly scheduled meeting held 
on June 17, 2013, authorized the following, pursuant to GS 
160A and 270(b),that the property listed below, be disposed 
of: 

Asset 1371 17’ Boat and Trailer 
Asset 2074 Mitrek Remote Control Base Station 
Asset 2075 Mitrek Remote Control Base Station 
Asset 2076 Mitrek Remote Control Base Station 
Assets 3920-3949 UHF Mobile Radios 
Asset 4210 Laptop Computer- Dec P120 
Asset 4430 Voice Stress Analyzer 
Asset 5299A-J Safariland Body Armor Vests 
Asset 5336A-E Safariland Body Armor Vests 
Asset 5384 Safariland Zero G Body Armor 
Asset 5444 2001 Honda Red ATV 
Asset 5445 2001 Honda Red ATV 
Asset 5654 Safarliland Body Armor Vests 
Asset 7230 Belgium Malonois Drug Dog- Zeva 
Asset 5874 Credit Card Receipt Printer- Airport 
Asset 3354 Konica 2028 Copier 
Asset 3355 Konica Bin Sorter 
Asset 5350A-K HP Deskjet Printers 
Asset 6581 Beverage Air Solid 2 Door Freezer 
Asset 3041 High Water Signal Control Unit 
Asset 5683 8x8x6 Cedar Shed 
Asset 2912 Iron Treatment Filters 
Asset 2913 Ground Water Storage Tank 
Asset 6108 Bull Horn Alarms- Lift Station 
Asset 5375 Xerox Copier 
Asset 6119 Ice Maker 
Asset 4300 Whalehead Club Scale Model 

ADOPTED, this 17th day ofJune, 2013. 

S. Paul O’Neal 
Currituck County Board of 
Commissioners 

ATTEST: 

____________________________ 

118



Mary S. Gilbert 
Clerk to the Board 

119



COUNTY OF CURRITUCK 
CAPITAL PROJECT ORDINANCE 

BE IT ORDAINED by the Currituck County Board of Commissioners, North Carolina that pursuant 
to Section 13.2 of Chapter 159 of the General Statutes of North Carolina, the following capital 
project ordinance is hereby adopted: 

SECTION 1. The project authorized is design and construction of Phase I replacement of the 
Wastewater Treatment Plant for the Ocean Sands Water and Sewer District. 

SECTION 2. The following amounts are appropriated for the project: 

Professional Services 278,312$         
Construction 3,000,000$      
Contingency 300,000$         

3,578,312$      

SECTION 3. The following revenues are available to complete this project: 

Transfer from Ocean Sands Water and Sewer 3,578,312$       
Operating Fund

3,578,312$       

SECTION 4. The Finance Director is hereby directed to report, on a quarterly basis, on the 
financial status of each project element delineated in Section 2 above. 

SECTION 5.  SPECIAL APPROPRIATIONS AND RESTRICTIONS 

The Budget Officer is hereby authorized to transfer appropriations within the fund as 
contained herein under the following conditions: 

a. He may transfer amounts between object line items within the fund up to
One Thousand dollars ($1,000).

SECTION 6.  CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS 

The County Manager is hereby authorized to execute contractual documents under the 
following conditions: 

a. He may execute contracts for construction or repair projects which do not
require formal competitive bid procedures.

b. He may execute contracts for (1) purchases of apparatus, supplies, and

120



materials, or equipment which are within the budgeted departmental appropriations; (2) 
leases of personal property for a duration of one year or less and within budgeted 
departmental appropriations; and (3) services which are within budgeted departmental 
appropriations. 

c. He may execute contracts, as the lessor or lessee of real property, which are of a
duration of one year or less which are within the budgeted departmental appropriations.

SECTION 7.  USE OF BUDGET ORDINANCE 

The Budget Officer and the Finance Director shall use this capital project ordinance for 
administration of the budget and for the accounting system. 

ADOPTED this 17th day of June, 2013. 

S. Paul O’Neal, Chairman 
Board of Commissioners 

ATTEST: 

Mary S. Gilbert 
Clerk to the Board 

121


	Table of Contents
	Agenda
	Consideration and Action:
	07-08 Case Analysis

	Public Hearing and Action:
	13-05 Case Analysis

	Appointments to Library Board of Trustees
	Appointments to Game Commission
	Game Commission Applications

	Budget Amendments
	Approval of June 3, 2013 Minutes
	Approval of Airport Rules and Regulations
	Approval of Mutual Aid Agreement with City of Chesapeake Fire Department
	Resolution to declare items surplus from various departments
	Project Ordinance for Replacement of the Ocean Sands Wastewater Treatment Plant - Phase I



